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Three Spires Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

The Trustees present their annucl report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the charitable
company for the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024. The annual report serves the purposes of both o Trustees’
report and a directors' report under company law,

The Three Spires Trust operates 3 secondary academies and 3 primary academies within the Diocese of Lichfield. The
Trusts academies have a combined pupil capacity of 4175 and had o roll of 3,767 in the school census in October 2024.

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution

The ccademy trust is ¢ charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt chority.

The charitable company’s Trust deed is the primary governing document of the acaderny trust.

The Trustees of Three Spires Trust are also the directors of the choritable company for the purposes of company law.

The charitable company is known as Three Spires Trust,

Detalls of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the daie these accounts are approved ore included in the
Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the chariteble company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as
may be reguired, not exceeding £1, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceqsed to be o member,

¢. Trustees' indemnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Trust has purchosed insurance to protect Trustees and officer from
claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions accurring whitst on Trust business. The insurance provides cover

up to £10,000,000 cn any one claim.
d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees
The management of the acodemy trust is the responsibility of the Trustees who are elected ond co-opted under the

rerms of the Trust memorandum and articles of association. Trustees ore appointed to the Trust Board under sections
50- 63 of the Three Spires Trust articles of association.
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Three Spires Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
Eor the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The Three Spires Trust provides induction and training for new Trustees that is dependent upon thelr experience. All
new Trustees are welcomed into the Trust by the Governance Professional who is responsible for their induction ance
they have completed ali necessary checks.

The Trust utilises an online portal known as "Governor Hub™. Governor Hub allows Trustees to gain immediate access to
all Governance information. Cne of the benefits of this system is that it enables the Trust to aveid overwhelming new
Trustees with ¢ huge printed induction pack. In particulor, Trustees ore directed towards the following information:

. Organisational structure

. Trust Articles of Association

. Trust Scheme of Delegation & Governonce Framework

. Keeping Children Safe in Education (KCSIE)

. Education & Skills Funding Agency Academies Hendbook

All Trustees must complete and sign a declaration o state that they are eligible to perform the duties of o Director, as
well as declaring any business and pecuniary interests.

Trustees complete a skills audit on appointment and complete further training if this is requested or considered
necessory.

The Trust believes that strong Governance is vitally important and provides an induction and reguler engoing training
provision for Governors.

The Trust subscribes to the National Governance Association (NGA) which provides links to further online training for
both Governors and Trustees.

New Trustees spend some specific time during induction with the CEO and the Chair of the Trust Beard.

The Trust hos recently commissioned our internal oudit partner to complete an cudit of Corporate Governance to
provide quality assurance and scruting.
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Three Spires Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {(continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)
f. Organisational structure

Three Spires Trust operotes a fiot governance structure as detalled below, demonstrating thot all stakeholders cre
partners in the Trust and its vision for education.

The Executive Leadership Group and Central Support Team consists of Officers employed by the Trust to carry out the
strategic and operctional objectives set by the Trust board,

Our nigh-guality gevernonce model provides confident and strong strategic leadership ot all levels, which is shaped by
our Christion values. By fulfiling this cim we ensure rebust accountability, oversight, scrutiny ond guality assurance for
the educaticnal and fingncial performance of the Trust and its academies.

The TST Baord has overall legal responsibility for the cperation of the Trust and the academies within it. The Board
works in partnership with its family of academies and wses the skills and knowledge of the Trustees and Academy
Committees to heip challenge and support the professionals working within the accademies to provide the best
outcomes for every child and young person in the Trust.

TST is run by @ Board of Trustees who are accountable to the Secretary of State for Education for the performance of
each academy within the Trust. The CEO is the Accounting Officer and is personally responsible to the Secretary of
Stote for Education.

Wwithin TST, typically the Trust Board oppoints an Academy Comimittee to each acaderny. This includes both parent ang
staff representatives with the majority of governors appointed by the TST Boord. We have clear processes and
procedures for the recruitment and appointment of our governors. Some ccademies may choose to have shared
governance with one Academy Committee overseeing more than one school and this will be constituted by the Board
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Three Spires Tryst

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management {continved)

following discussions between the CEQ and the Academy Committee of the schools concerned,
The Scheme of Delegation is predicated on ‘responsibility can be delegated but accountability connat’.
This Scheme of Delegation provides for certain functions to be carried out by one or more of the following:

+ the Members

» the T5T Board;

s the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and other officers as specified;
* the Acodemy Committee of the ccademy; and

* the Principol of the ccademy;

The board of trustees is responsible for ensuring that the vision, values and strategic direction of the trust are clearly
defined ond followed The trustees are afso responsible for monitoring the proper and effective use of the trust's
resources and ensuring value for money principles are followed.

The Trust has reviewed its Scheme of Delegation to ensure that the effective management of the organisation.

The Scheme of Delegation provides clarity on how the organisation is structured and who is responsible for making
dedcisions.

it is the Trustees' responsibility to ensure that vio the Governance Structure and the executive team the Trust is making
effective use of public resources and maintoining o high quality of provision.

The Members

The members of TST have a different status to Trustees. They have been the signatories to the memorandum of
gssecigtion and have agreed the TST first articles of association (o document which outlines the governance structure
and how the Trust operates). The articles of association alse describe how members are recrufted and replaced, and
how many of the Trustees the members can appoint to the director board. The members appoint Trustees to ensure
thot the Trust's charitable object is corried out ond so cre able to remove Trustees if they fail to fulfil this responsibility.
Accordingly, the Three Spires Trust board will submit an annual report on the performance of the Trust to the members.
Members are also responsible for approving any amendments made to the TST articles of asseciation.

Main duties and responsibilities

»  Toappoint Trustees to the Trust Board bearing in mind the Articles of Association and the need for a balanced skill
set to manoge the Trust effectively

» Toremove ony Trustee who is not considered to be acting in the best interests of the Trust

+  Fromtime to time to review the Articles of Association ond to make changes where deemed necessory after taking
advice from the Trust Beard

+«  To appoint other Members {io not exceed 5) as necessary in ling with the provisions of the Articles of Association

»  Ensure the success of the Trust

+« Appoint and remove the auditors

* Toreceive a signed off copy of the annua! repert and accounts.
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Three Spires Trust

(A Company timited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management {continued)
Currently the Mermbers are:

e The Diocese of Lichfield Education Trust (OLET) acting cerporately on behalf of the Diocese of Lichfield Board of
Education;

s« Two individual members of the Diocesan Board of Education nominated by that Board;

e Cne individua! nomingted by the Bishop of Lichfieid;

e The Choir of the Boord of Trustees of TST

The Trust Board

The Trustees dre the charity directors (within the terms of section 177(1) of the Charities Act 201) and are responsible
for the general control and management of the administration of the Trust in accordance with the provisions set out in
the memorandum and articles of ossociation. The Trust board is the accountable body for the performance of all
ccademies within the Three Spires Trust and as such must:

e Ensure clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction
e Hold the CEOQ to account for the educsctional perfermance of the ocademies and their students, and the

performance management of staff
« Oversee the financial performance of the trust and make sure fis money Is well spent

Because Trustess are bound by both charity and company law, the terms ‘trustees’ and ‘directors’ are often used
interchangeably, We use the term Trustee. The Trust board is permitted {o exercise all the powers of the Three Spires
Trust. The Trust boord will delegate to the Chief Executive responsibility for the day to day operations of the Trust. The
Trustees can determine whether to delegate any governance functions.

The constitution of the Trust Board is set out in the Articles of Associotion and is currently made up of 9 Trustees:

¢ The Chair of Trustees, appointed by Members
e Four further Foundation Trustees, appointed by Members
¢ Four Co-opted Trustees, appointed by Member appointed Trustees

There is a clear process for the appointment of Trustees:

s Article 50 of the Trust Articles states that member will appoint four Trustees,

e Article 58 of the Trust Articles states that Trustees may appeint Coopted Trustees. A Coopted Trustee means
person who is appointed to be a Trustee by Trustees who have not themselves been so appointed.

s The Choir of Trustees is apreinted by the Members frem amengst their number.

+ The CEC s not a Trustee.

The Trust boord has the right to review and adapt its governence structure ot any time which includes removing
delegation.
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Three Spires Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)
Main duties and responsibilities

« To ensure that the activities of the Trust fulfil the cbjectives as described in the Articles of Association

*  To ensure compliance with the Trust's duties under company and charity law

= Taoensure the ocodemies are compliant with all statutory obligations (e.g. curriculum, SEND, safeguarding)

*  To uphold the Christian distinctiveness of each Church of Englond academy within the Trust

+ Tosofeguord the assets of the Trust

+ To ensure the solvency of the trust and to abide by the agreements made with the DfE ond Educational and Skills

+«  Funding Agency (ESFA) including the Master Funding agreement and the Supplemental Funding Agreement and as
defined in the current issue of the Academies Financial Handbook

s To determing the overall strategic direction ond development of the Trust through good governance and clear
strategic planning

« To approve the Trust's strategic plan

» To challenge ond support the Trust's CEOQ, executive leaders and academy leaders to achieve the gutcomaes of the
strotegic plan

» To oversee the performance of the Trust and its academies and direct change where performance falls short of
expeciotion

e To agree policies across the academies within the Trust {unless ctherwise delegated to individual academies)

» To ensure thot risks are mitigated where possible and otherwise effectively monaged

o To review the Trust Boord's terms of reference on a regular bosis and 1o recommend any changes to the Board of
Members

*  Toapprove the terms of reference of the Board's committees
Te approve the Trust's annual budget and monitor progress through the receipt of regular reports and to
commission auditors

»  Toapprove the annual budget for each academy and moniter expenditure against the budgets

» Toapprove the annual and other statutory reports to Members and the ESFA

» Toagree and review from time to time the scheme of delegation to the academies

+  Toapprove the onnual report and accounts prior to subrmission to Companies House

s To review the effectiveness ond skill set of the Board and recommend appropriate changes to the Board of
Members

Currently, there are three Trust Board committees:

s+ fFingnce, Augit and Risk Committee (FAR),

s Quality of Learning Committee (Qob) and the

* Pay and Remuneration Committee

Other committees and/or regional boards may be formed os TST grows. The term TST Board” will therefore include
any such committees/boards thot maoy be formed from time to time and decisions cllocated to the TST Board maoy be

token by those committees in accordance with their terms of reference.

The Trust Board will review and approve the Scheme of Delegation annually.
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Three Spires Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report [continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)
Academy Committee (AC)

Each Acaderny Committee is @ committee of the Trust Board which has been given delegated powers (via the Scheme
of Delegation) In order to oversee the running and development of its ccademy.

The Trust hoard will establish an Academy Committez in eoch seadermy and will oppoint the chair. Two parents will be
elected to the committee. The Acaderny Committee will:

e Seek to understand how the academy is led and managed: the Principal will report termly on how the acodemy is
fulfilling the Trust's ethos, vision and strategy
e Monitoring whether the acodemies are!
°  Working within agreed policies
°  Meeting the agreed targets
°  Managing their finances well
°  Engaging with stakeholders
®  Reporting to the boord
e Act as the panel when reviewing the Principal’'s decisions on suspensions, exclusions, and parents’ complaints
e Be the consulictive body for the academy’s stakeholders
« Represent the academy's stakehelders
e Forge links with the community

The AC may cheose to delegate some of these powers to governor panels (e.g. admissions, suspensions or exclusions,
and staffing mattars or the Principat as it deems fit to fulfil its responsibilitizs). Where the Scheme of Delegation refers to
the AC this may include such committees or further delegation os the AC sees fit, but with the understanding that the
ultimate responsibility remains with the Acadermny Committee.

Link Champions

Link Champions will be appointed by the Trust Board and each Academy Commitiee to cover five key areas of
responsibility, they are:

1) Christian Distinctiveness
2) Finance and audit

3) Heglth and Sofety

4) Safeguarding ond SEND
5) Quality of Education

The Trust Board permits academy committees to appoint more than cne governor to alink chompion rote, if so desired,
The Trust Board also permits academy committees the flexibility to appoeint additional link champicn roles where a
specific focus is required, for example, leadership and management or post-16 education.

Link Champions across the Trust will meet virtually each term with their counterpaorts and the appropriote central teom
officer to discuss key thernes of future visits, training requirements and tc provide feedback between governors and

trustees.
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Three Spires Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarontee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governgnce and management {(continued)

The Executive Leadership Group and Centrai Support Team
The CEO
The CEQ is responsible for the promotion of the Three Spires Trust,

The CEO has the delegated responsibility for the operation of the Trust including the performance of the its acodemies
and so the CEO performance manages the Principals in each academy. Whera there s delegation 1o an Academy
Committee (AC), this will usually be with the Chair of the AC alongside,

The CEC is the accounting officer so has overall responsibility for the operation of the Trust’s financial responsibilities
and must ensure that the organisation is run with financial effectiveness and stability; avoiding waste ond securing
value for money.

The CEO leads the executive leadership group of the Trust. The CEQ will delegate executive functions to the executive
leadership group and is occountable to the Trust boord for the performance of this executive leadership group and the
central support team,

The Executive Leadership Group

As of September 2024 the ELG consists of the CEQ os listed above together with Academy Principals and the following
Trust leaders:

s Deputy CEQ & Chief Financial Officer
+ Director of Operations

+ Director of Safeguarding ond SEND
+  Director of Education

The Central Support Team
From September 2024, the team at the centre of the Trust are:

¢« Director of Post-16 & Pathways

e Director of ITT AND Worship Lecd (part time)

+  Assistant Director of Safeguarding & SEND (part time)
*»  Speciclist Teccher: Autism & Social Communication (part time)
s Finance Monager Business Partner

¢ ICT Business Partner

*  Senior Business Manager

» Governance & Marketing Manager

« Administration & MR Support Manager

»  Senior Finance Officer (part time)

+ Hegith & Safety Complionce Manager {part time)
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Three Spires Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

The Trust may appoint further specialists to the Central Support Teom ¢s required.Togetner, the Executive Leadership
Group and the Central Support Team supports academies with:

e Curriculum

s Safeguording & SEND

e  QFSTED inspections

» Teaching ond Learning

« Fingnce

*  SIAMS Inspections (Church academies only)
¢ Human Resources

¢ Health & Sofety

+  Governance

¢ Information and Communications Technology
s Cyber Security

«  Public Relations and Communications

« Data Protection and Freedom of Information
« Funding Bids

« Capitol Projects

+« Internal & External Audit

» Postié Education

« Business Management

«  Pay & Remuneration

e Performance Mancgement & Appraisal

+ Single Centrol Register

« legal

+ Risk Mancgement

e Training & INSET

s Outreach & Networking

s Recruitment & Selection

This is far from on exhaustive list. Three Spires prides itself as being a Trust that is responsive to our academies’ needs.
As o central team we are always ovailable to help support our academies in any areas that they feel they need
assistance with,

Academy Principals

In our academies, the Principal will be assigned delegated powers but maoy choose to defegate these further to another
member of staff eg. the Academy Business Manager ar Vice Principal, Where this document refers to Principal this may
include other stoff members who have been delegated responsibilities with the understending thot the ultimate

responsibility remaing with the Principal.

" ol cases, the TST Boerd is accountable directly to the Secretary of State for each academy and thus has overoll
responsibility for the final decisions made. The CEO has auihority to chalienge decisions made by ACs or to direct
Principals if the CEQ considers that it is in the best interests of TST to do so, or that o decision made by an AC is not in

the best interests of the school.
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Three Spires Trust

(A Compoany Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management {(continued)

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Performance management of Trust staff is mangged by the Trust Board in line with the principles highlighted in the
scheme of delegation,

Performonce management of Principals is managed by the Trust Board with remuneration being considered in line with
School Teachers Pay ond Conditions and the scope of individuol leadership bands ond successful achievement of
performance targets.

The Trust believes it is vita! to be transparent about salaries within the academies sector and how those salaries are set.
Salaries are benchmarked against similar roles within the acodemies sector and the trust refers to o recognised paoy

scale, A degree of flexibility is afforded relating to salory to ensure the Trust can recruit and retain the best staff.

Three Spires operates a trust-wide pay policy that has been negotiated with relevant trade unions. The policy is updated
annuaily with any changes to STPCD and NJC regulations for support staff.

The Trust intends to continue to use Standord Teacher’s Pay and Conditions as the basis of its pay policy for teaching
stoff, ond for support staff the Trust Intends 1o continue the use of the Green Book framework,

h. Trade union focility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year 1
Full-time equivatent employee number t

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employeess
0% 1
1%-50% -
51%-99% -
100% -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £

Total cost of faciity time .
Total pay kil 21,171,119
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time - %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours - %
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Three Spires Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarontee)

Trustees' Report {(continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)

i. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The Three Spires Trust serves a diverse range of communities throughout the Diocese of Lichfield. A register of business
interests is maintained ot Trust Beard and Academy Committee level.

j. Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)
Employees have been consuited on Issues of concern to them by meons of reguler consultative committee and staff

meetings and have been kept informed on specific matters directly by managerment. The acodermy trust carries out exit
interviews for ali staff jeaving the organisation and has adopted o procedure of upward feedback for senior

management and the Trustees.

The ccademy trust has implemented o number of detailed policies in relation to all aspects of personnel motters

including:

. Anti buliying and harassment
. Appraisal and professional growth
. Dignity at work

. Equality and diversity

. Flexible working

. Managing ottendance at work
. Menopause support

. Pay

. Performance improvement

. Resclving grievances

+ Safer recruitment

. Time off

. Visitors and volunteers

. Disciplinary Policy

In accardance with the academy trust's equal opportunities pelicy, the academy trust hos long-established fair
employgment practices in the recruitment, selection, retention and training of disabled staff. Full detalls of these policies
are available from the academy trust's offices.

The Trust is continually seeking to develop arrangements to ensure that our engagement with employees:

«  Provides employees with information on matters of concern fo them

+ Consults with employees regulorly so that their views can be considered in decision making likely to affect their
interests

« [Encourages the involvement of empleyees in the Trusts performance

s Achieves o common awarenass on the part of all employees of the factors uffecting the performance of the Trust

« Develops its policy in respect of applications from disabled persons, treatment of employees who become disabled,
and the training, career development and promation of disabled people.

The Trust is currently in consultation with the JNC surrounding o number of draft policies designed to further enguge
with our employees and colleagues:

+  Maternity, paternity ond adoption leave
s+ Redundancy and recrganisation
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Three Spires Trust
(A Company Limited by Guargntee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Structure, governance and management (continued)
Engagement with employees (including disabled persons) (continued)

The Trust invests in an Employee Assistance Programme (EAP) that provides compassionote health & wellbeing
support. This is o confidential service available for our staff and their immediate families ovoiloble 24 hours o day, 7
days a week, 365 days a year.

The Trust has lounched an Electric Vehicle (EV) salary sacrifice scheme to provide benefits to our employees and the
environment.

Objectives and activities

a. Objects and aims

Qur visicn

Three Spires Trust plays g port in young people discovering life in alf #ts fullness. These words first spoken by Jesus,
encompass every aspect of being human - relating well to those around us, confident in who we are and enjoying the
spiritugl dimensions of life. Qur Academies are communities where individual learning and chalienge flourish, toilored to
the abilities and ambiticns of each young person. Qur Academies enable students to maoke great progress and reach
the highest educational stondards.

Our values

Through our Christion volues, Three Spires Trust strives to enrich the lives of our communities. We will live, love and
leaorn as we seek to EMBRACE fife in ofl its fuliness’. We belleve that we can realise our full potential academically,
socially, globally and spiritually through the prometion of our Christion values which enable our students to!

«  Enjoy learning

* Model service

« Belong to afomily

+ Respect and develop the whole person
*» Agpire to achieve

» Core for the earth and soch other

»  Experience the love of God

Three Spires Trust is committed to working within a respectful and compassionate environment. It is open to schools of
all faiths and none, oll educational phases ond alf Ofsted judgments - we celebrate diversity.
The Trust exists to serve the students In its core. It has o small number of core principles:

s We expect all our academies 1o support each other and to share best proctice for the benefit of ol

» We encourage each of our ocademies to celebrate its distinctive identity within our community.

s We are committed to providing quclity-ossured services to keep our academies legal, financiolly robust and
continually improving.

«  We consider that our Christian distinctiveness enhances the life of the Trust and all invelved with us.

Page 14



Docusign Envelope ID: 71E744A5-A327-4BA0-9D2F-06DBAF85121B

Three Spires Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Objectives and activities (continued)

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The Three Spires Trust exists to promote the education, health and welibeing of children and young people in all of its
ocademies whilst enabling them to discover life in all its fullness. All of our acodemies have development plons that
address how they wiil seek to raise levels of ottainment and achievement, keep children safe and develop young people
to improve their life chances, Over the next 3 years the Trust will seek tor

s Admit more academies if their vision and values match the Trusts, due diligence is positive and the Gevernors and
leadership team are keen 16 join,

« Manage the £30m rebuild of St Peters, Wolverhampton.

+  Work in partnership with cur academies to drive school improvernent.

s  Refine our growth strategy to enable us to benefit a wider oudience.

e Ensure Christian Distinctiveness 1s ot the heart of all we deliver os o Trust.

e Develop o high guclity and supportive relationship with existing and potential associote members.

e Consider bidding for free schocls within the Diccese of Lichfield.

» Help ond faciitate our existing ocademies to deliver their development plans.

e Actively expand our provision of Trust networks to focilitate the sharing of best practice across the Trust.

¢. Public benefit

In setting our objectives and planning our activities, the Trustees have carefully considered the Charity Commission’s
general guidance on public benefit.

Strategic report

Objectives

Our vision will be achieved by meeting the chjectives set out in cur TST Strategic Plan 2024-2028. The strategic plan
cbjectives cre split into four pillars:

«  Flourishing Children

s Flourishing Aduits

« Flourishing Academies
s Flourishing Trust

Each pillar encempasses three objectives, each with its own specific KPIs. For clarity and practicality, we have
consolidated these objectives under five overarching headings. For more detailed information, please refer 1o the
following document: strategic plan 2024-28.

The strategic plan is embedded into each Academies Development Plan and evidenced by impact statements.
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(continued)
Flourishing Children

s Provide an education where all children are able to learn and grow in a wide range of contexts and
transformational learning experiences.

s Deliver curriculum models which blend the accodernic, technical and collational, enabling the children the
opporiunity 1o thrive,

s Prioritise the safeguarding of all children so they are enabled ombitiously, supported compassicnotely and
championed refentlessly.

Flourishing Adults

«  Prioritise stoff well-being where oll adults are given professional space to breathe, freedom to think creatively and
opportunities to work collaboratively.

s Provide on inclusive professional development programme where alt individual gifts ore honed, staff's expertise
sharpened, and ambitions fulfilled.

= Simplify workflow; reduce bureaucracy and clleviate negative pressures on work life bolonce so thot all staff chose
to commit to the teaching profession for the long-term.

Flourishing Academies

= Provide relentless service to the communities in which they serve, opening their doors to pupils and families from all
backgrounds and contexts, raising aspirations, levelling up and enabling social mobility.

« Empower iecders to moke courageous decisions, prioritising the needs of the most vulnerable through ambitions
and expansive visions for SEND and Appropriate Provision.

+« Facilitote the professional environment and cultural conditions for adults and children to enjoy being together,
ensuring organisational management provides the systems, pclicies and processes te enable the flourishing of alk.

Flourishing Trust

«  Continually toke risks to improve the life chances of children, be bold and voca! in our ombition for what education
can look like and unapclogetic in our pursuit of ife in oll its fullness” for every child and adult.

e« Nurture a rich and sustained commitment to deep colloboration across the Trust, and beyond, through vibrant
netwark meetings, peer review activities and effective resource pooling.

» To ensure the ethical growth of Three Spires by expanding our community of schools with leaders who share our
core values and commitment to educational excelience.
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(continued)

Achievememnts and performance

Academies within the Trust continue to perform strongly: improving in o range of key performance indicaotors,
Academic achievement is clearly very closely aligned to our strategic objectives os articulated in the report- particularly
in regord to developing the whole person and ochieving vocational and academic success. The Trust board receives
reports via the Director of schoo! improvement - where performance data is considerad along with the acodemy
improvement plans and professional growth targets.

With o focus on the Church of England’s vision for education ‘called, connected and committed’, acodermies within the
Trust are supported through a school improvement offer which is explicit in its desire to promote colloboration. 1t
focuses on bringing inspirational leaders, teachers and support staff from across the MAT together 1o grow, flourish ond
provide an excellent education with Christian volues at its heart. We are confident, as o Trust, that we have tailored an
offer that recognises where each acedemy is on their improvement journey and confident that each Is supported to
perform weil and deliver high quality provision to the young people in their care. This is also extended to those schools
working as associate member schools.

Al acadernies have thair own unique culture and ploce within a tocal community, and this approoch tokes that into
account when they join our family. The success of our ccodemies depends on our investment in colfeagues’
professional development and tearning. Our emphasis on staff development and "growing cur own' talent is bosed on
our commitment to spotting enthusiasm and nurturing ambiticn ot an early stage. An investment in every member of
staff's development through ‘In house' and external courses; coaching and mentaoring, and a culture of {rust where
nuMearous opporiunities are crected for stoff to “step up’ ond lead projects in and across the Trust, is actively promoted.

The appointment of o Director of school improvement has acceleroted the professionc! growth model adopted by the
Trust where there is now an impressive professional network programme on offer. A robust Trust action plan has been
put into place and already, has sharpened up the processes and procedures across the Trust for early identification and
intervention of any vulnerable groups of children,

The Trust board believe that the academies should provide a caring, sofe and vibrant environment for students where
their spiritual, moral, social and physical development Is developed ond protected. In this respect, trustees follow
stotutory sofeguarding guidence and practice to ensure the safety of children providing eppropriate iraining for staff,
volunteers and the board.

The Trust board has continued to be oppropriately sustained with a wide range of experience in the fields of education,
commerce, human resources and corporate offoirs. These attributes have contributed to effective control, strong
challenge and positive ambition for the academies as well as their students, their staff and the communities they serve.

Strong budgetary controls are exercised as part of a culture of disciplined finencial management - achieving optimum
value for money. The ennual progromme of repairs, atong with significant capital projects, are resulting in buildings

within the Trust being maintained and developed to @ high standard.

The academic results of the academies for examinations sat can be found on the BfE performance tables.
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{continued)

a. Key performance indicators

Our schocls aim 10 ensure that our pupils experience “Life in All its Fullness”. This means that in addition to providing
excellent educctional outcomes, and a rich and diverse curriculum, we olsc seek to grow all pupils regordless of their
ability or background so that they develep strong values and become o valued part of society.

To this end, our key performance indicator is reflected through the creation of our curriculor, both ot primory and
secondary phoses. Although educotional outcomes are hugely important, we aim o provide a guality of education
which means that the young people who leave our care are in the best position to progress onto their next steps. We
gim to establish a curriculum which gives all students, of whatever ability and background, access to o wide range of
opportunities, both inside and outside of the classroom.

To achieve this, our newly developed strotegic plan is built around four key piliars: flourishing chiidren, flourishing adults,
flourishing academies, and flourishing trusts. Each pillar encompuosses three objectives, each with its own specific KPIs.
Below are several examples of what the KPIs for our objectives look like. All of these can be found in the strategic plan.

1. Technoiogy and Innovation Integration

» Percentoge of academies fully equipped with advanced educational technologies (e.g., Now Press Play, VR,
Promethean) and percentage of pupils and staff octively engaging with these tools to enhance teaching ond
learning.

2. Staff Development and Training Impact

«  Percentage of staff completing professional development programs (inclusive practices, trauma-informed
safeguarding, career-focused education, and Church of England NPQs) and reporting increased confidence and
capability in applying their lecrning to practice.

3. Student Qutcomes and Career Readiness

+« Percentoge of pupils participating in career-focused activities {e.q., internships, industry partnerships, or real-world
learning experiences) and transitioning successfully to further education, employment, or apprenticeships within 6
months of graduation.

4. Community and Stakeholder Engagement

s Number of partnerships estadlished with businesses, organizations, and community groups, and percentage of
pupils and parents reporting positive outcomes from initiatives such as community hubs, safeguarding systems,
and real-world learning cpportunities.

5. Organizational Leadership and Strategic Influence

¢ Number of contributions to national curriculum policy, collaborative innovations implemented from external
networks, and percentage of attendees at Trust conferences or INSET days reporting alignment with the Trust's
vision and strategic goals.
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(continued)

b. Going concern

After making oppropriate enquirtes, the Boord of Trustees hos o reasonable expectation that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operationel existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can ke found in the accounting policies.

Financial review

The majority of the Trust's income is obstained from the Education ond Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), this tokes the form
of recurrent grants the use of which is restricted to educational purposes.

Grants received from ESFA during the pericd ended 31 August 2024 and associcted expenditure are shown as restricted
funds in the statement of financial activities.

The Trust is a Church of England multi acaderny trust. The academy land and buildings are owned by the Diocese of
Lichfield. The Diocese leases the lond and buildings to the Trust by way of the Church Supplemental Agreement (CSA)
which has o rolling 2-yeor term. This arrangement In iypical for a Church of Englond MAT and means that most of the
fand & buildings utilised by the Trust and our academies do not show on the Trust batance sheet. At first glance this
mokes the trust's net asset position oppear lower than expected. This arrongement and the government backed
pensions deficit inherited when schools joined the Trust are key to understanging the Trust's balance sheet.

The Trust considers the foliowing as key financial indicators:

. Robust financial monitoring in line with ESFA AH regulations.

. Ensuring value for money through effective financial management procedures.

. The Trust and its academies comply with the Trust's financial regulations and policies.

. Monitaring and maintaining o positive cash balance to ensure all expenditure obligations can be met.
. Monthly review and reporting of income and expenditure.

. Production of annuai 5 year forecests for all acodernies and the Trust.

. Academy Commitiee monitoring of Management Accounts.

The Trust held fund baiances at 31 August 2024 of £11,3%0.822 excluding a pensions reserve of (£914,000}. This
comprised an amount of unrestricted funds of £236393 ond restricted funds of £11,154,429 (excluding the pension
reserve). Total funds including the pension deficit were £10476,822. The pensions deficit is backed by the UK

Government.

The Three Spires Trust has reviewed the major risks thot can affect the Trust in particular, these relate to Finance,
Audit & Risk, Quality of Learning (including Sofeguarding & SEND), and Pay & Conditions which is why the Trust have set
up Trust sub committees in these areas to ensure increased scruting. Accordingly, the Trustees are confident that they
have implemented systems, procedures and internat controls to monitor and manage these risks. Further information is
included in the Risk Management section below. Where significant financial risks still remain adeguate insurance cover is

in place.
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a. Reserves policy

The Reserves policy establishes o framework within which decistons will be made regarding the level of reserves held by
TST and the purposes for which they will be used and maintained. The Reserves Policy:

e Assists in strategic planning by considering how new projects or activities will be funded;
« informs the budget process by considering whether reserves need to be used during the financial year or built up
for future projects;

*» Informs the budget and risk management process by identifying ony uncertainty in future income streams,

The trust's Risk Manaogement Strotegy and Risk Register are actively used to make informed judgements about the
apprepriate level of reserves to hold for future activities undertaken by TST for its beneficiaries.

The reserves policy takes into account income and expenditure, capital expenditure commitments and the reserves
required o cover any urgent requirements for expenditure ond any potential shortfalts in income.

Details of all reserves and year end balonces are contained In the Trust’s annual Statement of Accounts,
The level of reserves will be kept under review by the Trustees,
b. Investment policy

The investment policy governs the investment strategy of TST and all establishments thot constitute TST. The
mancgament of charitoble funds and investments will comply with the regquirements of the:

. Charities Act 2016; Trustee Act 2000,
. Financial Services ond Markets Act (FSMA) 2000; and the
. Cherity Commission.

The charitable funds of T5T are derived from direct government and local authority grants and thase funds ore defined
as restricted. Additional charitable funds are generated through the operational nature of the charity's work, such as
providing education, training, and development; these funds are defined as unrestricted.

The trustee of these funds is TST, which is managed by its Board of Trustees through the Finance, Audit & Risk
committee. Therefore, there is a sole corporate body/trustee with responsibility for managing and administering the
assets of the charitable funds ond investments,

This investment policy ensures that cash flow and current account bcolonces are monitored to ensure financicl
commitment con be met as and when due. Additioncily, the Trust's bank account will be maintained at o level thaot

enables i to meet any forthcoming commitments,

The Trust will ensure that its bank balance will not go overdrawn as this is not allowed by the Academies Handbook.
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¢. Principai risks and uncertainties

The Trustees have assessed the major risks and uncertointies that offect the Trust and consider the following ta be the
most significant chalienges over the next 12 months:

e Recruitment and retention of key staff within the Trust especially in light of the teacher recruitment crisis.

s Ensuring the successful integration of academies into the Trust.

»  Managing the mentai heatth crisis affecting young people and the unavailability of CAMHS.

«  Ensuring that the trust’s estate is safe, well maintained and complies with relevant regulations.

e Changes in Government policy following the 2024 General Election and how this affects education in general and
academy trusts specifically.

¢ Managing the SEND crisis and insufficient funding for young people with high needs.

s Managing high levels of puplt mobility in seme of our schools and particularly huge in year admissions in
Wolverhampton.

e Chonges in the inspection fremewaork,

e Ensuring thot the Trust is protected from cyber-attacks and other information technology related risks.

s Potenticl trade union action relating to teaching pay disputes

e Potential tfrade union action reloting to support staff disputes

e Threats of nationwide blockouts relating to energy crisis and national security issues.

s Catching up on education lost for pupils as a result of schools closures due to COVID 19,

s Unknown future developments relating 1o COVID 19.

There are also the more general risks to be managed such as fraud, reputational domage and failure to deliver on
school improvement targets.

Risk Manogement

The Trustees are responsibie for risk monagement end for maintaining a robust systern of internal control thot supports
the ochievement of policies, oims and objectives whilst safeguording the pubiic funds and assets for which it is
responsible. The Trust Board is cdvised in this role by the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee and both cre advised and
informed bu the Executive Leadership Group.

The Trust Board fulfils its risk management rele by establishing the following system of internal controls:

o Approving and reviewing a series of pelicies that underpin the internal controt process;
¢ Agrzeing objectives, plons and rescurces by means of the whole Trust budget, the detailed Trust strategy and its

underlying delivery plan;
s Scrutinising the Audit Recommendations Tracker (ART) which logs all recommendations from external audit,

internal audit and any 3rd party crganisations.
e The policy statement and the risk register and the thorough review of them each year to identify risks, near misses

and opportunities; and
o Considering carefully the advice from the Internal Auditor together with advice from any cther external consuvitants

ond inspectors.
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The Trust Leadership Team fulfils its risk management role by:

* Implementing the Trust's policies on risk management and internal control;

*  Advising the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee and the Trust Board of the fundamental risks foced by the Trust and
helping them 10 evaluate those risks;

+  Providing timely and sufficient information to the Trust Board,

*  Assisting the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee in drawing up the risk register; and

+ Working to embed risk management and risk based internal control in alt aspects of Trust management.

In its ongoing consideration of the risk register the Trust Board consider the following issues:

» ‘whether risk management continues to be linked to the achieverment of overall Trust objectives;

+ The oppropricte risk appetite or level of expasure for the Trust as a whole;

s Whether risk assessment and risk based internal control are embedded in ongoing operctions and form part of the
Trust's culture;

» Changes in the nature and extent of fundomental risks and the Trust’s ability to respond to those changes;

+ The extent and frequency of reports on internal control 1o the Trust Board;

» The incidence of and fundamentat control failings {risk events) or weaknesses identified at any point (necr misses)
and the impact that they could have; and

s The effectiveness of the overall approach and policy to risk management and whether changss or improvements
1o processes and procedures are necessary.

Risk management Is suppoerted further by the individua! Academy level risk registers, which are maintained at Academy
level and reviewed by their Academy Committee. These are then reviewed on an annual basis by the CFO who will raise
any concerns with the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee and ensure that significant risks affecting the Trust as o whole
are included in the Trust Risk Register.

Fundraising

Any fundraising activities toking ploce within the Trust or its ccademies will comply with the requirements of the
Chartties Act 2016.

Fundraising is not part of the Trust's core business or main charitoble objectives. The trust does not cperate o high level
of fundraising octivities. Most fundraising within the academies will come through non uniform, fancy dress or cake sale
days. Parents cre made aware of the beneficiaries of their donations in advance which may be to support o local or
national charity of the pupifs choice, or alternatively, to finoncially support a specified school event. Contributions are
not compulsory.

No fundraising income is included within the Trust income shown within the Statement of Financial Activities,

Plans for future periods

The Trust will continue to work in partnership with cur member schools 1o develop each ocaderny offer to consistently
achieve excellent outcomes for our pupils. Christian distinctiveness is at the core of our vision and volues as g Trust,

thus, ensuring that the Trust offers something distinctively Christian within its community of schocels is @ high priority.

St Giles & St George’s Church of Englond Academy Trust, o muiti ccodemy trust in Newcastle Under Lyme with one
primary school, joined tha Trust in November 2023 and Honley St Luke’s jolned in February 2024, Our primary sector

Page 22



Docusign Envelope ID: 71E744A5-A327-4BA0-6D2F-06DBAF85121B

Three Spires Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Plans for future periods (continved)

went from 190 pupils to just under 1,000 during this financial year. Development of the Three Spires Northern Primary
Hub over the next few years perticularly in relation to curriculum development, business management and leadership is
a strategic priority for the Trust,

we will admit more academies if their vision and values align with those of the Trust, provided due diligence is positive,
and the Governors and leadership team are enthusiastic about jolning. This will be done while fostering strong
partnerships with our existing academies to help embed and achieve the strotegic plan, Additionally, we will focus on
developing high-quality, supportive relationships with both current and potenticl associate members, We will alse
consider bidding for free schools within the Diocese of Lichfield.

we will actively expend cur Trust networks to focilitate the sharing of best practices across the Trust. We will engage
with and challenge thinking on curriculum design and structure at & netional level to ensure that the curriculum of the
future enhances life chances for the young people of Three Spires. Additionally, we will ensure that Three Spires remains
at the forefront of developments in Al in education.

we will set up an industry leading secondary Appropriate Provision in Wolverhampton to suppart St Peters, St Regis and
the Local Authority. Focilitate middie schools joining Three Spires to enoble the Trust to redlise its Education for Life
philosophy, and to maximise the rigour and robustness of our educational offer across all key stages.

Manage the £30m rebuild of St Peters, Wolverhampton,

Develop the TST Institute of Education 1o provide more rescurces for the sector and to further differentiate the TST
offer.

Facilitate middle schools jolning Three Spires to enable the Trust to readlise its Education for Ufe philosophy, and to
maximise the rigour and robustness of our educational offer across all key stages.

Ensure that our newly launched strategic plan, built around four key pillars: flourishing children, flourishing adults,
flourishing academies, and flourishing trusts, is integral 1o everything we do ot Three Spires.

Trust Growth

In December 20271 the Trust had its first ESFA Financial Monagement and Governance Review. The successful
completion of this review led to the Trust being given the green light for more schools to join the Trust. There have
been tentative expressions of interest from schools to explore joining Three Spires ond we ore actively discussing future
partnerships with @ number of schools, SAT's, small MAT's, the Diocese and the Department for Education.

The Trust is working alongside the DFE and has developed important strategic and working relationships, We are keen
to work with the DFE in the spirit of parinership ta ensure the bast possible outcomes for young people across the
Diocese of Lichfield. The Trust is receptive to engaging in school improvement projects with scheols and academies
outside of the Trust and regards this cutreach work as instrumento! in impocting positively on educational standards,

The Trust has devised o growth strategy that will enable the Trust to grow Ina considered and sustainable manner. The
Trustees are supportive of the notion that growth needs to be careful and considered; the copacity of the central team
will need to be kept under review in order to ensure that ¢ high-quality service is maintoined. Schools will not join the
Trust on o first-come, first-served basis, but rather because thelr vision and volues aligr with ours, ensuring that the fit is
right. This approach will help enrich the lived experience within each academy. The due diligence process will continue to
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Pians for future periods (continued)

be comprehensive and will enable both the Trust and the incoming acodemu to feel fuily confident ahead of conversion.

St Micheoels in Tettenhaoll, Wolverhampton is an OFSTED "outstanding’ primary school. The school has an attached SEND
Unit - SEMH Primary Need that is known as the Ark. The school is working closely in partnership with Three Spires: the
CEC ond other Trust leaders have nurtured positive relationships with school staff and Governors. The school is
currently going through ¢ process of due difigence with Three Spires having had an application 1o join accepted by the
DFE.

In Biddufph, Woodhouse Academy is o SAT thot is developing increasingly close links with Three Spires. Woodhouse is
an excellent community based middle school with considerable school Improvement capacity. Woodhouse will shortly
be entering the due diligence phose with Three Spires. Once this is complete their Trustees will make o decision on
whether they would like to join TST,

A number of ather maintained schools, SATs and small MAT's have engaged In recent conversations with TST regarding
joining TST in the future.

Three Spires engages in regular discussions with the Director of Education for the Diocese of Lichfield with reference to
the future.

Academy Growth

All of our children deserve ccademies where they can learn and grow in a wide variety of well-designed curriculum
experiences, acress o brood ronge of subjects’ disciplines. We provide children with the skills, knowledge and
experiences to thrive academically, socially and spiritually so that they are prepared for a future full of opportunity and
success. With Jesus’ promise of ‘life in all its fullness’, we strive every day to ensure our children know they are vaived,
understood, supported, and loved.

Qur growth strategy s based on this vision and on the acodemy’s capocity to improve. As a Trust, children are at the
heart of all we do; we aim to support all our acodemies (o provide the best possible outcomes so thot everyone can
experience humaon flourishing.

The Trust recognizes every academy hos something to offer irrespective of their position or crcumstance; pockets of
excellence exist everywhere. To this end, we will spend time identifying and drawing on the tolent and expertise of
practitioners across all academies, ensuring every chiid con benefit from this excellent proctice.

The improvement strategy identifies how we will work with Individual ccademies and the collective within the Trust. It
aims to provide clarity around the expectations, values, roles and responsibilities and ways of working, in the pursuit of
enabling all children to achieve thelr maximum potential.

The balance between standardized ond autonomous practices can be a fine line; ecch acadery must have its cwn
identity and should act as the heart of the community; responding to need within the given context. However, the
benefits of being part of a Trust includes the ability to take advantage of economies of scale; it is inefficient to have 3 or
4 different contracts for the same MIS system, but likewise, it makes nc sense to have 3 or 4 different versions of a
Leadership report to the Academy Committee (AC), when we know thet a particular approach is effective. As such, we
feel we have struck the perfect balance between standardized and autonomaous practices, which are needed to achieve
individual trojectories of improvement and innovation, which will then lead to collective strength.
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Plans for future periods {continued)

The challenge for us all in education is to clways evolve; get better; and continually grow so we can have a positive
impact on our students. We need 1o reinforce the status of our wonderful profession ond promote staff wellbeing to
unlock the skill, passion and discretionary effort thot undeubtediy exists within us all. The quality of leadership, teaching
and curriculum are ¢t the top of our agenda, and we view our staff as our greotest assel Therefore, our academy
growth process exists to ensure thot our teams con be the very best they can be. This in turn, leads to a flourishing

school system.

To that end, the Trust has removed traditionat "school improvement’ and replaced it with ‘academy growth’. Whilst this
rmight, at first sight, appear to be semantics, it isn't. It is o different belief set, a different perspective that ultimately filters
down to professicnal growth models in individual acodemies.

This process sets out the framework for o clear and consistent cpprouch to the development of our staff and our
expectations, in terms of the high standards to which all our team aspire.

The invitational, wrap-a-round support that the Trust offers meons improvement is done “with” and not "o’ academies.
Insiead, we encourage leaders to drow upon owr collective strengths and unique differences to continually drive
excellent for each of our students.

Wwe are commiltted 1o the mantra that everyone contributes, and everyone receives.
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Plans for future periods (continued)

Three Spires Institute of Education
The success of education depends on our investment in colleagues’ professional development and learning.

QOur vision is to establish a culture and cantext in which alf schools can grow, flourish and provide an excellent education
with Christian values ot its heort. We seek o enable all children, young people and adults to realise their God-
given potential, aspire to succeed and build communities where diversity is celebrated. These opportunities are not
fimited to staff from within the Three Spires family, we are part of the wider education family, inclusivity ond
collaboration are at the heart of everything we do.

Our comprehensive professional development progromme is entirely inclusive and complements the DfE’s ‘golden
thread programme of providing high-quality support, training and development available throughout the entirety of g
tegcher’s career.

Our programmes are of the highest quality. We are part of o range of professional learning networks and work with
industry-leading portners, such as the Church of England and Best Practice, and local teaching school hubs and multi-
agcademy trusts to deliver outstanding continuous professional development.
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Pians for future periods (continved)
School-Centred Initial Teacher Training (SCITT)

The Three Spires Institute of Education is dedicated to preparing and empowering aspiring teachers for success in the
dynamic field of teaching.

Through a collaborative effort with Teach First, the ingtitute delivers a School Centred initial Teacher Training (SCITT)
program. This program not only leads to Qualified Teacher Status (QTS) but alse grants ¢ Post Graduate Certificate in
Education (PGCE) with master's level credits,

The institute’s research-criented course provides @ honds-on experience guided by skilled practitioners, allowing
trainees to discover and utilize their skills and passion to benefit children's lives. The progrom involves immersive
training in o school environment, engaging with stakeholders, and pariicipating in weekly training sessions te enhance
professional practice.

As o school-led initiotive, the program emphasizes learning from experienced practitioners. Trainees progressively
move from observing effective practices to team teaching and eventually delivering solo lessons. The curriculom is
structured to balance subject expertise with effective teaching methodologies. The program aims to manage workload
effectively while prioritising the well-being of aspiring teachers, supporting their journeu to becoming successful
professionals in the field.

Apprenticeships

The struggle te find experienced and gudlified teachers is o daunting one, often resulting in compromised classreom
guality ond overstretched staff.

However, this is where we feel teacher cpprenticeships step in, offering ¢ transformaotive sclution that not only filis
vacancies but also cultivates a pipeiine of skilled ond dedicated teachers.

we proudly support Best Practice Network's Teacher Apprenticeship which stands at the forefront of this revoiution,
charocterising Three Spires” sentiment of ‘growing our own’ talent. The programme provides a unique platform for
leaders in schoois to harness untapoed potential, nurturing aspiring teachers intc accomplished teachers who align with
the ethos and values of the institution.

The essence of the teacher apprenticeship model lies in its comprehensive approach. Apprentice teachers are
immersed in the day-to-day realities of the classroom, gaining valuable hands-on experience under the mentorship of
seasoned teachars. This approach not only bridges the experience gap but also ensures that opprentice teachers qre
well-prepared to step into full teaching roles with confidence and competence.

what sets teacher apprenticeshios apart is their ability to cater to school's unique needs and priorities. The apprentice
teachers become an integral part of the school's fabric, embodying its values, and contributing to its growth.

Apprentices complete the majority of the training in school while continuing to support teaching and learning. Core
training days and workshops will be hosted and co-delivered by leads at Best Practice gnd Three Spires,
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Plans for future periods (continved)
Early Career Framework

Teachers deserve high-quality support throughout their careers, particularly in those first yeors after ITT when the
learning curve s steepest.

This entitles alt early career teachers to a funded, two-year package of structured training and support linked to the
best available research evidence To compliment this provision, ECTs will also hove access to ¢ mentor who has
experience in @ similar setting. Such mentors wilt be provided with on-going training encbling them to provide a
provision which will enable immedicte, actionable strotegies that can be used in the classroom.

To this end, we are excited to be working os a Delivery Partner for Best Practice Network, The balance between online
learning resources, conferences with detailed development on instructional coaching and half-termly training sessions
mean ECTs receive o robust training package that facilitates genuine professional and personal flourishment.

Professional Network Meetings

The Trust provides various professional network meetings to nurture the professional development of oll staff, fostering
the growth of flourishing individuals within our adult, student, and academy communities. These include but are not
restricted to:

= Subject specific including K81 and KS2 maoderation sessions
« Christian Distinctiveness (see separate section)

« Phase specific e.g. Early Years, Post 16

s Coreer

« SEND

*» Scfeguording (see separate section)

»  Business Operation and Finonce

These network meetings bring together different leaders from across the Trust for trcining, development, and
networking opportunities.

The meetings are led by either members of the central Trust team or designated ocademy feads, with the aim of
ensuring that our academy leaders are highly skilled and capable of progressing in their areas of responsibility.
Networks vary in frequency from termly to annually to meet the needs of the Trust and individuat academies. "Gap
tasks may be suggested between meetings to ensure leaders are supported to have impact in their settings.

Areas of focus are agreed prior to the meeting to ensure activities are responsive and regctive 1o academy need but
during sessions leaders may:

o spotlight key developments, important publications/ updates in Education or Business opergtion or Finance

= have continucus and effective opportunities to share and develop best practice. Practice, which is then distilled into
elements that can be transferred ond embroced by stoff in such o wey that their effectiveness is not compromised,
and consistency is achieved.

+« explore research ground effective teaching or business practice so there is a shared understanding of what expert
practice entails.

+ enables staff across multiple contexts to have @ sound understanding of how students learn and flourish and how
highly effective academies also flourish.
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Plans for future periods (continued)
Church of England

On behalf of The Church of England, the Trust delivers o suite of NPQ programmes including the Headship award which
will be made avallable to aspirant heads across the West Midlands. We deliver the following NPQ programmes:

s  NPQ Leading Behaviour and Culture
+ NPQ Leading Teaching

*  NPQ Senior Leadership

«  NPQ Headship

o NPQ SENCO

o NPQ Primary Maths

Showcasing Research in Action
At Three Spires, we take pride in the exemplary work carried out in each of our academies.

we have pockets of excellence thot contribute to the flourishing of every child under our care. Our leaders cre
dedicated 1o meeting the unigue needs of their students, employing Innovative methods to ensure inclusivity in the

provisicn of education.

The cornerstone of our inclusive curriculums is grounded in evidence-informed practice. Decislons made within our
acadernies dre based on the best available evidence regarding effective educctional practices, rather than relying on
guesswark or traditional methods. We encourage our leaders to immerse themselves in research, both in theory and
practice. Our stoff actively engage with schools across the UK and beyond to gather intelligence that enriches their
projects.

wiile we acknowledge that evidence alone cannot solve alf challenges, we recognise the importance of leaders’
professional expertise and experience in determining the most suitable approgches for their specific contexts. Research
evidence informs these decisions, empowering teachers to articulate what is happening In thelr classrooms and why.
This is essential for the success of our endeavours.

From our unigue basketball academy in Welverhamptoen to our EP Literacy provision for SEND fearners in Newcastle-
under-Lyme, we strive to share our outstanding proctices with other schools ond organisations. Our geal is to ensure
that alf children have the opportunity 1o benefit from and thrive in their learning environments.

Partnerships

Three Spires are proud to working alongside JT MAT as « system leader for The Trust and School improvement (TS
offer 2023-24,

As a Trust, we recognise the value of partnership with external agents. The collaborative efforts between Three Spires
and our partners below create o symbiotic relationship that enhances the overall educational ecosystem.

Our collaboration with the Church of England, DFE and the Chartered College of Education represents a harmonious
union dedicated to providing o comprehensive and values-based educational experience. Through its partnership with
the Church of England, Three Spires instils ¢ strong moral and ethical foundation, incorperating religious education and

Page 29



Docusign Envelope iD: 71E744A5-A327-4BA0-8D2F-06DBAF85121B

Three Spires Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Plans for future periods (continved)

fostering a sense of community and compassion among students.

This collaboration emphasises the vaiues of inclusivity, respect, ond service, creating an environment that nurtures both
academic excelience and personal development. Concurrently, the school trust’s alliance with the Chartered College of
Education ensures a commitment to cutting-edge pedagogical practices and continuous professional development for
educctors. By tapping into the expertise and resources offered by the Chartered College, the school trust empowers its
teaching staff to stay abreast of the latest educational research, methodologies, and technologies, thereby enhancing
the overall quality of teaching and learning.

DfE bid

A successful bid proposal 1o the DIE has meant that since November 2023, Three Spires has been the lead and key
Delivery Partner of the ‘Stoke on Trent Pricrity Area: raising attainment in English across KS3 and K54'. The project aims
1o support teachers to successfully embed ‘formative and summative gssessment strategies into thelr teaching proctice
to measure progress more accurately ond effectively It will focus on a variety of elements that will be of interest to
schools, including:

using key skills and knowledge to underpin planning

explicit teaching with o focus on pedagogical proctice and instructional strategies
interleoving

oracy

This project and the associated funding will open many opportunities for the Trust, toking us one step closer to our
ambition of developing ¢ teaching school in the future. Working in sunergy, Three Spires has brokered a successful
partnership with the following:

Chapter Education

Ormiston Horizon Academy

Research Schools Network

National Youth Theatre

High profile English practitioners including Stuart Pryke and Jennifer Webb

A successful delivery of this project will ploce Three Spires in an incredibly strong pesition, demonstrating to the wider
educational community that we have the skills, knowledge, and capacity to facilitate robust school Improvement across
the West Midlands.

Funds held as custodian on behaqif of others

No funds are held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others.
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Disclosure of information to auditors

insofar as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unawere, and
. that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves gware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trustees' Report was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company directors, on 9 December 2024
ond signed on its behalf by
Signed by:
WLLL
/‘—-—‘
E8C2004EDO0A4DC.
Dr D Lee

Chair of Trusteas
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Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overcll responsibility for ensuring that Three Spires Trust has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, ond can provide only reasonable ond not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in Dft's Governonce Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day to day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the reguirements of both propriety and good financict manggement and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned 1o it in the funding agreement between Three Spires
Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting o the Board of Trustees any
matericl weaknesses or breckdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Statement
of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Boord of Trustees has formally met 4 times during the period. The Trustees believe
that this is more than adequate to provide the required level of scruting and oversight.

This is porticulorly the case os the Trust board has put in place 3 subcommittees to ensure increased torgeting of
oversight and scrutiny for Finance, Audit & Risk and Quality of Learning and Pay & Remuneration.

Attendance during the year ot meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Revd R Farnworth
Mrs H Robertson
Ms T Tennyson

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
The Venerable Dr D Lee, Chalr of Trustees 4 4
Mr B Holstead 2 4
Mr J Lawson 2 4
Mrs J Piimore 3 4
Mr S Farar 2 4
Mrs K Covey 4 4
4 4
2 4
0 o]

Finagnce, Audit & Risk Committee ("FAR")
Obfective
The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee (FAR) brings together representatives from each of the Academies within the

Trust and Trustees of the Board. The purpose is to provide a holistic Trust-wide review of the financial activities of the
Trust and ensure that the risk register is monitored appropriately.
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Governance {continved)
Context

The work of the FAR committee falls under the remit of the Academy Trust Handbook, government guidance on risk
{the Orange Book) and the trust's own policies, procedures and reporting protocols.

The Board must not cdd to these terms of reference responsibilities that require the Audit Commitiee to adopt an
executive role. Members of the Audit Committee must not offer professional advice to the Boord. The Audit Committee
should seek formal professional opinions from the internal audit service, financial statements auvditor or other
professional odvisers to the Boord. Advice should only be given in Committee members’ capacity as Trustees and only
within their terms of reference.

The FAR committee met 4 times during the period and attendance was os follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of o possible

Mr B Halstead

Mr J Lowson, Chair of FAR committee

Mrs K Covey

The Venerabie Dr D Lee, Chair of Trustees
Ms T Tennyson

Rev Roger Farnworth

N O W o N
E o N - Y

Quaglity of Learning Committee ("QOL"}

The Quality of Learning Committee brings together Trustees of the Board. The purpose is to provide a holistic Trust-
wide review of the Quality of Education provided by the Trust and to identify and implement appropriate policies and
procedures to safeguard the welfare of ol relevant students, staff, volunteers, and other service users coming into
contact with the Three Spires Trust.

Three Spires Trust is committed to providing education of the very highest standards to all pupils within o Christian
context This con only happen if the sofety and well-being of every pupil is a foremost pricrity. Every academy needs to
ensure that training is reguiar and comprehensive, staff are vigilant, systemns are coherent and understood, responses
are timely, communication is smaooth, record keeping is meticulous and every member of staff understands that no
concern is too small to pass on. Safeguarding is a corporate, shared responsibllity amongst everyone involved in the life
of the Trust. The management of safeguarding on a day to day basis is the responsibility of the Trust's employges. The
Trust QOL committee s @ strategic partner in delivering these responsibilities.

The QoL committee met 3 times during the period and attendance was as follows:

Trustee Meetings ottended Out of a possible

The Venerable Dr D Lee, Chair of Trustees
Mrs J Pitmore

Mr S Farar, Chair of QOL committee

Mrs H Robertson

W W W W
W N W W
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Governance (continued)
Pay & Remuneration Committee

The Pay and Remunergtion committee brings together Trustees of the board. The committee will have due regard to
the requirements set out in the Academy Trust Handbook in relation to the setting of executive pay, off payroll working
and the publicotion of higher paid staff salories.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
The Venearable Dr D Lee, Chair of Trustees 1 1
Mr B Halstead 1 1
Mrs H Robinson 1 1

Governance Reviews

The Trust has successfully completed internal cudits of Corporate Governance and infermation Governance, as well as
a review of Governance by the National Governance Association {NGA) in the recent past. The Trust Board is proactive
and reflective and leoks 10 oppraoise the skills of its trustees and governors regularly to ensure competence in line with
the competency framework. As part of the agreed Internat Audit Strategy for 2024-25 Corporate Governance will ogain
by audited by an external provider. The Trustees continue to be encouraged by the quality of the information they are
receiving and are confident that this has enabled them 1o be effactive.

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good
value in the use of public rescurces The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy trust’s use of its resources has provided good volue for money
during sach academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including
the use of benchmarking dato where appropricte. The accounting officer for the academy trust hos delivered improved
value for money during the period by,

+«  Recruiting experts from the ocademic sector 1o provide In house knowledge and expertise.
»  Sharing of best practice across the Trust as an clternative 1o buying in external experts.
+  Developing the Executive Leadership Group (ELG) to enable Principals to share knowledge and experience.
+ (Cregting o Business Manager forum to discuss financial issues and share best practice.
+  Utilising three Trust sub committees to focus in on the key dota:
* Finonce, Risk ond Audit
«  Qudlity of Learning
»  Pgy & Remuneration Commitiee
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Review of vaiue for money (continued)

Ensuring effective tendering for. ond management and leadership off, centraily managed services and contracts:

e« Poyroll

o  Employee Assistance Program
« Legal Services

e Internal Audit

s External Audit

+ Financial Management System
o Trust wide MIS system {Arbor)
e Single Centrol Register

o Cyber Security

« Heaolth & Safety

+ Complionce Management

¢ GDPR & Date Protection

Careful and diligent financial management to ensure funds are ovallable to:

+ Maintain a prudent contingency level

= |nvest in capiial projects

e Cope with the lagged funding mode! and the operctional issues it creates in a growing school

s Service ail financial manggement conditions placed upon the Trust by the £5FA upon inception.
e Ensure the trusts estate is safe, well-maintained and complies with regutations.

The Trust has set up @ Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) and signed a Trade Union Recognition Agreement (TURA)Y to
enable the Trust and its academies to work together in partnership for the benefit of all.

The Trust has launched on Academy Portal thet provides access for academy staff to olt Trust resources, policies and
precedures. The Trst procures goods and services via DfE framewark agreerments to ensure value for money.

Negotiate effectively with authorities regarding the finoncial position as a result of ¢ lorge amount of in year admissions
to one of cur secondary schools in Wolverhampton,

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to o reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives. it can, therefore, only provide reasonable ond not absolute cssurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks
to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the fikelihood of those risks being
realised ond the impact should they be reclised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
systern of internal control has been in place in Three Spires Trust for the period 01 September 2023 to 31 August 2024
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls thot hove been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the
view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evolucting ond managing the ocodemy trust's significant
risks thot has been in place for the period 01 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the
annval repert and financial staternents. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The academny trust’s system of internal finoncial control is bosed on o framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particuler, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annucl budget ond periodic finoncial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finonce, Audit and Risk Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capitel works and expenditure programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelinas

. identification and manogement of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ Validera (formeriy Haines Watts) as internal auditor.

The Trustees chose this option as they are of the view that these third party checks, coupled with our own internal
policles and procedures, are essential to provide a quaiity, balanced, effective internal scruting programme throughout
the Trust. The Trust Board agrees the Internal Audit Strategy (IAS) with the internal auditors on an annual basis.

The reviewer's role inciudes glving advice on financicl and other matters and performing o range of checks on the
academy trust’s systems. During 2023-24 the following internal audits were completed:

. Key Financial Contrels

. Pupll Dota

. Payroll & Expenses

. Business Continuity

. Budgetary Centrol

. 2023-24 Follow up oudit

These audits are in addition to the following audits completed since the inception of the Trust:

. Poyroll & Expenses

. Cyber Security

. Key Finoncial Controls

. Risk Management

. Corporate Governance

. 2021-22 Follow up audit

. Performance Management

. Safeguording

. Human Resources

. Estote Services & Development
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The risk and control framework (continued)

. information Governance
. 2022-23 Follow up audit

On a termly basls, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees through the finance, audit and risk committee on the
operation of the systermns of contral and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees financiol responsibilities and annuaily
prepares a short annugl summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewad, key findings, recommendations
and conclusions to help the committee consider octions and assess year on year progress. In particular Trustees review
the Audit Recommendations Tracker on ¢ termly basis 1o quality assure thot recommendations ore being actioned in g
timely and effective manner.

At the date of writing this repon, in the opinion of Validerg, the controls upon which the organisation relies to manage
risks material to the achlevement of its objectives are suitably designed and applied. Ne matericl control issues have

been reported.

Review of effectiveness

As aecounting officer, the Chief Eecutive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal controt. During the year in question the review has been informed by

. the work of the internal quditor;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. the work of the external guditors;

. the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and

maintenance of the internat control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the systemn of internal control
by the finance, audit and risk committee and a plan to address wecknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the finance, cudit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the
opinien thot the acodemy trust has an adequate and effective fremework for governance, risk management and

control.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees cnd signed on their behalf by:

Signed by: Signed by:
Toprks Mys Bmily Uerow
ESC2004E080A40C . DCE3ASDBS4044C0 .
Dr D Lee Mrs E Verow
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer

Date: 9 December 2024
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Three Spires Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the acodemy trust Boord of
Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of materia! irreguiarity, impropriety and nen-compliance
with terms ond conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and maenogement, under the funding agreement
between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my considerotion | have had due
regard to the reguirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including responsibilities for estotes safety and
management.

I confirm thot | ond the academy trust Beaord of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
cll funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance hove been discovered to
date. If any instances ore identified after the dote of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and
ESFA,

Signed by:

M ‘Emi(q Virsw

DCE3ASDBG4044CD...
Mrs E Verow

Accounting Officer
Date: 9 December 2024
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Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitabie compony for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for prepaoring the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in occordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, united Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable iow and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financiol statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true andg fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these finoncial statements, the Trustees are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principies of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Directien 2023 to
2024;

. make judgments and accounting estimates thot are reasonable and prudent;

. stote whether applicable UK Accounting Stondards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial stoterments;

. prepare the financial stotements on the going concern basis unless it is inapproprigte to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees ore responsible for keeping adequete accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reascneble accuracy at any time the finoncigl position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the ossets of the charitable company and hence for taking reascnable
steps for the prevention and detection of froud and other irregutarities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies finoncial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
ore olso responsible for ensuring grants received from CSEA/DIE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenonce and integrity of the corporote and financial information included on
the charitobie compeny's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial stotements moy differ from legisiation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Beard of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Signed by:
Thorsh k-
-
E8C2004EDS0A40C.
Dr D Lee
Chair of Trustees

Date: 9 December 2024
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independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of Three Spires Trust

Opinion

We have oudited the finoncial statements of Three Spires Trust (the 'academy trust”’) for the year ended 31 August 2024
which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Bolance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows gnd the related
nates, including o summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework thot has been applied
in their preparoticn is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), inciuding Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Finoncial Reperting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Irelond’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In aur opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and foir view of the state of the gcodemy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

. hove been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities SORP 2019

ond the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (SAs {UK)) and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those stondards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the ocademy trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial
Reporting Coundil's Ethical Stondard, ond we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordonce with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinien.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial stetements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparction of the financial statements is appropricte.

Baosed on the work we have performed, we have not identified ony materiol uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's abllity to continue as a
going concern for a period of ot least twelve months from when the finencial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the refevant
sections of this report.
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Other information

The other infarmation comprises the information included in the Annual Report ather than the financial staternents end
cur Auditors’ Report thereon. The Trustees are respensible for the other informetion contained within the Annual Report.
Our opinion on the finoncial statements does not cover the other information and, except fo the extent otherwise
explicitiy stated in cur report, we do not express any form of assurance conciusion thereon. Qur responsibility is to read
the other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financlal statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
risstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or opparent materiol misstaternents, we are reguired 1o determine
whather this gives rise to a materiat misstaternent in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is o material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

I our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

. the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial stotements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' Report has been prepared in accordance with oppliceble legal reguirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the ccademy trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
cudit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report.

we have nothing to report in respect of the following metfers in relotion to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

. adsquate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adeguate for our cudit have not been received
from branches not visited by us,; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees' rermuneration specified by low are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of trustees

As expigined maore fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the Trustees {who are also the directors of the
ccodemy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and foir view, and for such internal contral as the Trustees determine is
necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial stotements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters reicted 0 going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the acedemy trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finoncial statements as o whole are free from
material misstatement, whather due to froud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guorantee that on gudit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will olwoys detect o material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from froud or error and are
considered material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econcomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Iregulartties, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and reguiations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which cur procedures are capoble of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Qur gppreoch to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including froud
and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

» the senior stotutory auditor ensured that the engogement team collectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skilis to identify or recognise non-compliance with appliceble laws and regulations;

+ we identified the lows and regulations opplicable to the academy trust through discussions with directors and other
management, and from our commercial knowledge ond experience of the academy sector;

» we focused on speciic lows and regulations which we considered may have ¢ direct material effect on the financial
statements or the operations of the acodemy trust, including the financial reporting legisiation, Companies Act
2006, taxation legislation, anti-bribery, employment, and environmental and health and scfety legislation;

« we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enguiries of
management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

« identified lows and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert to
instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.
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we assessed the susceptibility of the academy trust’s financial statements to material misstatement, inctuding obtaining
an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

« making enguiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to froud, their knowledge of

actual, suspected and alleged fraud;
»  considering the internal controls in place te mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations.

To address the risk of froud through management bics ond override of controls, we:

« performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
tested journal entries o identify unusual trensactions;

e ssessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out I note 2
were indicative of potential bios;

s investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

in response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with faws and regulations, we designed procedures which
inciuded, but were not limited to:

+ ogreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
reading the minutes of meetings of those chorged with governance;
+  enguiring of management as to actual and potential litgation and ciaims;
s reviewing correspondence with HMRC, refevant regulotors and the academy trust’s legal advisors.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is @ risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading t¢ a material misstaternent in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the
more that compliance with a low or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding
irregularities occurring due to fraud rother than errer, as fraud involves intenticnal concealment, forgery, collusion,

omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our respensibilities for the audit of the finencial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website ot www.irc.orauk/auditorsresponsibitities. This description forms part of our Auditors’ Report.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Port 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Qur cudit work has been underiaken so that we might state to the academy trust’'s members
those maotters we cre required to stote to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by low, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust and its members,
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Simon Hawkins (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of
Dains Audit Limited

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Suite 2, Albion House
2 Etruria Office Village
Forge Lone

Stoke on Trent
ST15RQ

9 December 2024
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Three Spires Trust and the
Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 22 September 2022 and further o the reguirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as includad in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assuronce obout whether the expenditure disbursed and income received
by Three Spires Trust during the year 1 September 2023 1o 31 August 2024 have been applied to the purposes identified
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the outhorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Three Spires Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our
work has been undertaken so that we might state to Three Spires Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to
stete in a report ond for no other purposa. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than Three Spires Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we
have formed.

Respective responsibifities of Three Spires Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the reguirements of Three Spires Trust's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education doted 26 March 2021 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September
2023, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed ond income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament
and the finoncicl transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and
are to obtcin limited assurance and report In accordance with our engogement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed ond income received during the year 1
September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been appliad to purposes intended by Pariiament or that the financial
transactions de not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

Wwe conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a fimited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement ietter.

The cobjective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regulcrity.

A limited assurance engagement is more fimited In scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable Us to obtain assurance that we would become awaere of all significant matters that might be identified
in a reasonable ossurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regulority and propriety of the
ccademy trust's income and expenditure.
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Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in il material respacts the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financicl transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

.Y}Z‘i’(ﬂg M b igﬁ

Dains Audit Limited

Suite 2, Alblon Housge
2 Etruria Office Villoge
Forge Lane

Stoke on Trent
ST15RQ

Date: 9 December 2024
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Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account)
for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants:

Transfer of converted
ond exisiting
academies into the
Trust

Other donations and
capitat grants

Other trading activities
Investments

Charitable activities

Total income

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitoble activities

Expenditure on
conversion to
gcademy trust

Total expenditure

Net income/
{expenditure)

Transfers between funds

Net movement in funds
before other
recognised
gains/(losses) carried
forward

Note

w

19

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £

335,896 120,620 2,286,544 2,743,060 -
10,751 - 181,605 192,356 2,759853
875,558 - - 875,558 483337

43,609 - - 43,609 -
- 25,778,176 " 25,778,176 18,038,554
1,265,814 25,858,796 2,468,149 29,632,759 21,281,744
859,261 - - 859,261 482,628
52,419 25,915,744 407,248 26,375,411 17,436,455
(42,349) 581,555 (71,732) 467,474 718,600
869,331 26,457,299 335,516 27,702,146 18,637,083
396,483 (598,503) 2,132,63% 1,930,613 2,644,661

(1,327,281} 40,831 1,286,450 - -
(930,798) (557,672) 3,419,083 1,930,613 2,644,661
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Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Net movement in funds
before other
recognised
({losses)/gains
prought forward (930,798) (557.672) 3,419,083 1,930,613 2,644 661
Other recognised
gains/(losses):
Actuaric! gaing on
defined benefit pensicn
schemes 29 - 765,000 - 765,000 1,458,000
Pension surplus not
recognised 29 “ (249,000) - (249,000) (207.000)
Net movement in funds (930,798) {41,672) 3,419,083 2,446,613 3,895,661
Reconcitiation of funds:
Totol funds brought
forward 1,167,1AH1 (872,328) 7,735,346 8,030,209 4134548
Net movement in funds (930,798) (41,672) 3,419,083 2,446,613 3895 661
Total funds carried
forward 236,393 (914,000) 1,154,429 10,476,822 8,030,209

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 52 1o 92 form port of these financial stotements,
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 13153266

Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2024

2024 2023
Note £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 14 11,088,634 5,561,095
11,088,634 5,561.095
Current assets
Stocks 15 12,204 8.204
Dabtors 16 1,101,506 327499
Cash at bank and i hand 1,661,028 2,923.338
2,774,738 6,206,461
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 17 (2,055,318} (2.3%2,288)
Net current assets 715,420 3,874,173
Totol assets less current liabilities 11,808,054 9,435,268
Cregitors: amounts falling due after more thon
one year 18 (417,232 (326,059)
Net assets excluding pension liability 11,390,822 9,109,209
Defined benefit pension scheme fiability 29 {914,000) (1,079,000)
Total net assets 10,476,822 8,030,209
Funds of the ccademy trust
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 19 11,154,429 7,735,346
Restricted income funds 19 - 206672
Restricted funds excluding pension asset 19 11,154,429 7,942,018
Pension reserve 19 (914,000) (1.079,000)
Total restricted funds 19 10,240,429 6,863,018
Unrestricted income funds 19 236,393 1,167,191
Total funds 10,476,822 8,030,209
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Three Spires Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 13153266

Balance Sheet (continved)
As at 31 August 2024

The financiol statements on poges 47 to 92 were approved ond authorised for issue by the Trustees and are signed on
their behalf, by:

Signed hy:
E8C2004E080A40C.

DrDLee
Chair of Trustees
Date: 2 December 2024

The notes on pages 52 to 92 form part of these finoncial statements.
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 52 to 92 form part of these financiol staiements

2024 2023
Note £ £
21 (547,121) 1,651,023
23 (827,049) (609,834)
22 11,860 (11,287
(1,262,310) 1,029,902
2,923,338 1,693,436
24,25 1,661,028 2,923,338
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Notes to the Financial Stotements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

1. Accounting policies

11

1.2

13

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out beiow.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The finoncigl stgtements of the ocademy trust, which is ¢ public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standord Applicable
in the UK ond Republic of Irelond (FRS 102}, the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Proctice appiicable to chorities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK ond Republic of Irelond (FRS 102) (Charities SORP {FRS 102)), the
Acadermnies Accounts Direction 2023 1o 2024 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 ond the Compuonies Act
2006.

Three Spires Trust meets the definition of o public benefit entity under FRS 102.
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropricte Le. whether there are any material
unceriginties related 1o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the ccademy
frust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a peried of ot least
one year from the dote of quthorisation for issue of the financial statements and hove concluded that the
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a geing concern, thus
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting In preporing the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants gre included in the Statement of Financiol Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
Balance Sheet. Where Income is received In advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
defarred income until the performance-reloted conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before
income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable ond any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of copital grants ore reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the gsset on which
they are expended,
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1 Accounting policies (continved)

13

1.4

1.5

income (continued}

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-reloted conditions)

where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

QOther income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent the
ccademy trust has provided the goods or services.

Transfer on conversion

where ossets and labilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to an ccademy, the
transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance Sheet at the point when the
risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income s recognised as a
transfer on conversion within ‘Income from Donations and Copital Grants' to the net ossets received.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is ¢ legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be reguired in settlement and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliabiy. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity
are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking
each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocoted directly to thot activity. Shared costs
which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributakle to a single activity
are apportioned between those activities on a bosis consistent with the use of resources. Centrol staff costs
are aliocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation chorges allocated on the portion of the asset’s

vse.

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes ond
includes costs of oll fundraising activities events ond non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the ucaderny trust apportioned to charitable octivities,

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by
the academy trust; this is normally upon notificaticn of the interest paid or payable by the Institution with
whom the funds are deposited.
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

1.6

1.7

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraoph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of o charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or copitcl goins
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively
to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are copitalised as tangible fixed assets and ore carried ot cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

where tongible fixed assets have been ccquired with the oid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet ot cost and deprecioted over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the
continued use of the asset, the related grants ore credited to o restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement
of Financial Activities and carnied forward in the Bolonce Sheet Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed osset fund in the Stotement of Financial Activities. Where tongible
fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciction on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.

Depreciation Is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction,
at rates calculoted to write off the cost of each asset on a stroight-fine baosis over its expected useful life, as
follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Leasehold land - 0.8% straight line
Leasehold property - 2-10% straight line
Furniture and equipment - 10% straight line
Computer equipment - 33% straight line
Property improvements - 0.8-10% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until
they ore brought into use and reclassified to freehold or feasehold land and buildings.

A review for impoirment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate thot
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recovercble. Shortfalls between the carrying vaive of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the Statemnent of Financial Activities.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.8

1.9

1.10

11

112

1.13

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value ofter making due allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate propertion of fixed and varigble
overheads.

Debtors

Trade ond other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with o short maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

Liabilities

Liobiiities are recognised when there Is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as ¢ result of a post event, it
Is probable that o tronsfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlernent can be estimated reliobly. Liobllitles are recognised at the amount that the ocademy trust
anticipotes it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received os advanced payments for the goods
or services it must provide.

Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The fingncigl assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement bases are as follows!

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured ot amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash ot bank is classified as a basic fingncial instrument and is measured at face vaiue.

Financial lichilites - trace creditars, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amaortised cost os detailed in notes 17 and 18. Toxation and social security are not included in
the financial instrurments disclosure definttion. Deferred income is not deemed to be o financial fiability, os
the cash settlement has alrecdy taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather thon cosh
or ancther financial instrument.

Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

114

115

Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teochers' Pension Scheme
("TPS and the Loca! Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS™). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme ond contributions are colculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is o substantialiy level
percentoge of current and future pensionable payrall. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of guadrennicl valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as o defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate,

The LGPS is o funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held seporotely from those of the
ccademy trust in seporate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured ot fair value
and liabilities are mecsured on on octuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at
o rote equivalent to the current rote of return on o high guality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial voluations are obtained ot least triennially and are updated at sach
Balonce Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs
of schame Introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtaiiments. They are included as part of staff
costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is ciso recognised in the Statement
of Financiol Activities ond comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and Interest income
on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the foir value of the scheme assets ot the beginning of the
period by the rote used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on
the scheme assets ond the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and
losses.

Actuorial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
Conversion to an academy trust

The conversion from o state maintained school to an academy trust Invelved the transfer of identifiable
assets and licbilities and the operation of the school for £NIL consideration. The substence of the transfer is
that of ¢ gift and it has been occounted for on that basis os set out below.

The assets and liobilities transferred on conversion from Manley St Luke's C of E Aided Primary to the
academy trust have been volued at their foir value. The fair value has been derived based on that of
eguivalent items. The amounts have been recognised under the appropriate Bolance Sheet categories, with
a corresponding amount recognised in Expenditure on Charitable Activities in the Statement of Financial
Activities and analysed under unrestricted funds. restricted general funds and restricted fixed asset funds.

Further details of the transaction are set out in note 27.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

116 Transfer of existing academies into the ocademy trust

The transfer of an existining academies into the academy trust involved the transfer of identifiable assets
and iigbifities and the operation of the schoot for £NIL consideration. The substance of the transfer is thot of
o gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below.

The assets and liabilities transferred from St Giles' & St George's Church of Englend Acagemy to the
academy trust have been volued at their foir value. The fair value hos been derived based on that of
equivalent items. The amounts have been recognised under the appropriate Balance Sheet cotegories, with
a corresponding amount recognised in income from Donations and Capital Grants in the Statement of
Financial Activities and analysad under unrestricied funds, restricted general funds and restricted fixed
asset funds.

Further details of the transaction are set out in note 26.

117 Fund gccounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which moy be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academny trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for particulor
purposes. The alm and use of ecch designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific copital purpeses imposed by
the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/denor and include grants from the Department for Education Group,

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates ond judgments are continually evoluated and are based an historicat experlence and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be recsonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assurnptions will, by definition, seldom equal the reloted actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have o significant risk of causing ¢ material adjustment to the carrying amaounts of assets and liabilities within
the next fingncial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit licbility depends on a number of
facters that are determined on an actuarial basis using o variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any chonges in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 29, will impact the carrying amount of the pension lighility. Furthermore a roll forward
cpproach which projects results from the lotest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been
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2. Critical accounting estimaotes and oreas of judgment {continued)

used by the octuary in valuing the pensions lobility at 31 August 2024, Any differences between the figures
derived from the rolt forward approach and o full actuarial valugtion would impaoct on the carrying omount of
the pension liability.

An entity shall recognise a plan surpius as g defined benefit plan asset only te the extent that it is able to recover
the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plon. The trust are
expected to participate in the LGPS indefinitely and therefore do not believe there is any entitlement to a refund.
The trust has also instructed the pension actuaries to calculate an asset ceiling report to calculote the estimated
economic benefit avoilable as a reduction in future contributions, which shows a £Nii value for the Staffordshire
pension fund. Manogement have therefore derecognised the total pension surplus on the Staffordshire pension
fund of £600,000, which has resulted in the movement in surplus of £249,000 being derecognised in the year.

Critical areos of judgment:
Leasehold land and buildings:
Under 125 yecr lease:

The long term legsehold lond and buildings within the accounts relates to the academy premises which were
transferred to the acodemy on fransfer from an existing ocademy trust on a 125 year legse from
wolverhampton City Council. The lecsehold lond and buildings were valued using ESFA valuation. These are
being deprecioted in accordance with the depreciation policies set out in note 1. No annual charge is made for
the use of the land and bulldings under the terms of the lease, based on management not being able to reliobly
measure the cpen market rate.

2 year licence:

The academy trust company occupies:

(o) fand provided to it by the Local Authority under o 125-year lease {as detailed above),
(&) land provided to it by site trustees under a mere licence {aiso referred to as o Church
Supplermental Agreement) which contains © two year notice period.

In respect of;

(@) o figure Is entered that reflects advice taken on the value of the lease;

() Hoving considered the fact that the academy trust company occupies the land and such
buildings as may be or may come to be eractad on it by o mere licence that transfers to the
ocademy no rights or control over the site save that of occupying it at the will of the site
trustees under the terms of the relevant site trust, the directors have concluded that the value
of the land and buildings occupied by the ccademy trust company will not be recognised on
the balonce sheet of the company.

Page 58



Docusign Envelope ID: 71E744A5-A327-4BA0-9D2F-06DBAF85121B

Three Spires Trust

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

3. income from donations and capital grants
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Totai
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Donations
Transfer of converted and
existing academies intfo the
Trust 335,896 120,620 2,286,544 2,743,060 {718,0C0)
Donated on conversion to
acaderny trust 42349 - 71,732 114,081 -
Donations (%1,598) - (66192 (97,790) 737,508
Copital Grants - - 176,065 176,065 2,740,345
346,647 120,620 2,468,149 2,935,416 2759853

Total 2023 19,408 - 2,740,445 2,759,853

ettt rrTET—
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ry

Funding for Academy's educational operations

DfE/ESFA grants

General Annuat Grant

Other DFE/ESFA grants
Start up Grants
Teachers Pension Grant
Supplementary Grants/MSAG
Pupll Premium

Other DFE Group Grants

Other Government grants
SEN funding
Cther Government Grants

Settlement on Conversion

Qther income from the academy trust's

educational operations

Total 2023

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds

2024 2024 2024 2023

£ £ £ £

- 20,940,651 20,940,651 14,667,776

- 26,000 26,000 93,600

- 602,944 602,944 -

- 629,884 629,884 508,539

- 1,435,559 1,430,559 819,507

- 722,845 722,845 441008

- 24352 883 24,352,883 16530430

- 519,016 519,016 303366

- 567,330 567,330 148 379

- - - 800,000

- 1,086,346 1,086,346 1,251,745

- 338947 338,947 256,379

- 25778176 25,778,176 18,038,554
800,000 17,238,554 18,038 554
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5. income from other trading activities

School clubs Income
Hire of facilities

Other income

6. investment income

Investment income

Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£ £
57,531 57.531 33414
155,443 155,443 100,402
662,584 662,584 349521
875,558 875,558 483,337
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2024 2024 2023
£ £ £
43,609 43 609 -
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7. Expenditure

Expenditure on fundraising and
trading activities:

(Oirect costs

Support costs

Acodemy's educational
operations:

Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Transfer from local authority on
conversion

Total 2023

Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £
202434 - 142,190 344 624 162,327
122,278 19,054 373,305 514,637 320,301
17,367,301 - 2,186,743 19,554,044 12,846,092
3,479.106 191,263 3150998 6,821,367 4590363
- - 467 474 467,474 718,000
2137719 210,317 6320710 27,702,146 18,637,083
14,008,948 329512 4,298,623 18,637,083

Included within expenditure, transfer from local outhority on conversion in 2024 is €467 474 which relates to
Hanley St Luke's C of E Aided Primary that converted into the Trust in 2024, Further details are included in note

27.

Included within expenditure, transfer from loca! authority on conversion in 2023 is £718,000 which relates to The
King's CE School, Wolverhampton L.GPS pension deficit transferred on conversion into the Trust on 1 April 2023.
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8. Analysis of expenditure by activities
Activities

undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2023
£ £ £ £
Educational operations 19,554,044 6,821,367 26,375,411 17,436,455

Total 2023 12,846,242 4590,213 17,436,455

Analysis of direct costs

Totai Total
funds funds
2024 2023
£ £
Stoff costs 17,367,301 11,334,520
Depreciation 407,248 245369
Educational supplies 854,080 582,840
Examinaction fees 3,491 314,695
Siaff development and other stoff costs 62,173 48,368
Consultancy 189,308 148,491
Travel, subsistence and expenses 210,903 109,003
Recruitment and other stoff expenses 49,945 43,524
Pupil gifts ond prizes 41,595 19,432

19,554,044 12,846,242
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B. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance costs
Staff costs

Catering

Stoff support costs
Technology costs

Other costs
Maintenance of premises and speciol focilities
Cleaning ond caretaking
Operating lecse rentals
Rates

Security

Energy

l.egal and professionat
Tronsport

Other premises costs

Total Teotal
funds funds
2024 2023

£ £

48,000 73,000
3,479,106 2,399,955
448,570 295022
- 2,254
499,757 369,77
333,399 229,288
339,407 178,433
101,728 28,765
98,560 87,385
N7.637 53,420
1,474 3,040
791,966 488673
323,313 210,425
37,187 31453
191,263 139,329
6,821,367 4590,213
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9. Net income/{expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
PFl charges

Fees paid to auditors for:

- gudit

- pther services

2024

94,506
407,248
92,157

22,100
10,720

2023

£
65,594
245,369

18,200
4800
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10.  Stoff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages ond salaries
Social security costs

Pension costs

Agency Staff Costs
Appranticeship Levy

Severance payments

b. Severance payments

The acodemy trust paid 1 severance payments in the year (2023 - none), disclosed in the following bands:

£0 - £25000

c. Special staff severonce payments

2024 2023
£ £
15,382,365 10,236,399
1,581,942 1,056,686
3,449,674 2,307,087
20,415,981 13,600,172
695,287 372,772
61,851 36,004
FARYARIES 14,008,948
2024 2023
£ £
21,060 -
21,060 -
2024 2023
1 .

Included in severance payments is a special severance payment totalling £13,434 (2023 1 £Nil}.
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10. Staff (continued)
d. Staff numbers

The avercge number of persons employed by the acodemy trust during the yeor was as follows:

2024 2023

No. No.

Teachers 217 160
Administration and support 293 192
Management 10 9

520 361

€. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000

WS

2024 2023

No. No.

in the band £60,001 - £70,600 H
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 9 4
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 4 -
In the band £20,001 - £100,000 1 2
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 2 -
In the band £120,000 - £130,000 - 1
In the band £130,000 - £140,000 _ 1 -

f. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team
as listes an page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributicns) received by key management persennel for their
services to the academy trust was £1,395,484 (2023 - £324,242).
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1. Central services

The ccademy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

. Executive leadership support
. Externat educational support
. Payrolt

. Financial services and support
. Audit

. Human Resources

. Governaonce support

. Legal services

. Estates and Health & Safety support
. Employee wellbeing

. Professional subscriptions

. Grant opportunites

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis;
The trust charges for these services based on 4% of Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AwPW)

The actual amounts charged during the yeor were as follows:

2024 2022

£ £

5t Peter's Collegiate Acaodemy 451,102 255888

The King's Church of England Academy 193,206 136,200

St Thomas' CE Primary Academy 32,243 25,608

St Regis Ct Academy 364,769 53,593
St Giles' & 5t George's Church of England Academy 44,708 -
Hanley St Luke's C of £ Aided Primary 32,124 -

471,289

Total 1,118,152

12 Trustees' remuneration and expenses

During the yeor, no Trustees received any remuneration or other benefits (2023 - £NIL).

During the yeor ended 31 August 2024, expenses totalling £2,523 were reimbursed or poid directly to 2 Trustees

(2023 - £980 to 1 trustee). The nature of the expenses paid was the reimbursement of travel expenses.
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13. Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

The academy trust hos opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA}, an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and
officers from claims arising frem negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on acaderny business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers indemnity element from
the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

14. Tangible fixed assets

Assets
Long-term Property under fFurniture
leasehold improve- construc- and Computer
property ments tion equipment equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2023 4,566,018 793,363 326,154 220,601 205,848 6,111,984
Addlitions - 46,402 3,097,793 162,090 270,227 3,576,512
Transfer from existing
academy trust 1,806,409 408,975 - 32,776 38,383 2,286,543
Tronsfer on conversion - 18,620 - 53,112 . 732
Transfer between
clusses . 3,423,947 (3,423,947) - - -
At 31 August 2024 6,372,427 4,691,307 - 468,579 514,458 12,046,771
Depreciation
At 1 September 2023 450,946 36,487 - 37,970 25,486 550,889
Charge for the year 39,452 215,161 - 51,949 100,686 407,248
AL 31 August 2024 490,398 251,648 - 89,919 126,172 958,137
Net book value
At 31 August 2024 5,882,029 4,439,659 - 378,660 388,286 11,088,634
Al 31 August 2023 415,072 756876 526,154 182,631 180,362 5,561,095
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15. Stocks
2024 2023
£ £
Finished goods and goods for resale 12,204 8,204
16. Debtors
2024 2023
£ £
Due within one year
Trade debtors 82,944 21.01
Other debtors 77,989 79,267
Prepayments and accrued income 240,573 3,174,641

1,101,506 3274919

17. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2024 2023

£ £

Other toans 123,948 83,706
Trade creditors 372,647 261,731
Other taxaticn and sockal security 368,977 293885
Other creditors 482,334 32042
Accruals and deferred income 707,412 1372545

2,055,518 2,332,288

Cther loans incudes a loon balance transferred on conversion from the local authority in relation to The King's
Church of England Academy, Kidsgrove. This loan is subject to an interest charge of 0.5% above BOE bose rate.

Cther loans also includes o loan from The Lichfield Diocesan Boord of Education, in relotion to The King's
Church of England Academy, Kidsgrove. This loan commenced pricr to the conversicn of the school to
acodemy trust stotus and is repayable over 40 instalments by October 2030, Interest is charged quarterly at the
VDR on the amount of the loan then outstanding.
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18.

Other loans olso includes a foan from The Lichfield Diocesan Board of Education, in refotion to Hanley St Luke's
C of E Aided Primary. This loan commenced prior to the conversion of the school to ccaderny trust status andis
repayable over 30 instaiments by March 2030. No interest is charged on this balance.

Other ioans also includes recoveraile funding from the ESFA. This is in relotion to additional finencial support
received by St Regis CE Academy (formerly The King's Church of England School) on joining the Trust. The loan
will be repayable from September 2026 to August 2030. No interest will be charged on this balance.

2024 2023
£ £
Deferred income at 1 September 2023 357,710 138,751
Resources deferred during the year 355,322 275,853
Amounis releosed from previous periods (357,710) (57.8%94)

355,322 357,710

Included in deferred income are grants and cther incorme received in cdvance of entitiement for the future
academic period.

Creditors; Amounts failing due after more than one year

2024 2023
£ £
Cther loans 417,232 326,059

Other loans include the deficit balance troensferred on conversion from the local authority in reletion to The
King's Church of England Academy, Kidsgrove. The loan is repayable over 36 instalments, with repoyments
commencing in January 2024 and the final payment being made in December 2026. No interest is charged on

this balance.

Other loans also includes a loan from The Lichfield Dioceson Boord of Educetion, in relation to The King's
Church of England Academy, Kidsgrove. This lean commenced prior 1o the conversion of the school to
acodemy trust status and 1s repayable over 40 instalments by October 2030. Interest is charged guarterly ot the
VDR on the amount of the loan then outstanding.

Othear ioans also includes a loan from The Lichfield Diocesan Board of Education, in relation to Hanley St Luke's
€ of E Alded Frimary. This loan commenced prior to the conversion ¢f the school to academy trust status and is
repayaile over 30 instalments by March 2030. No interest is charged on this balance.

Other Ioans also inciudes recoverable funding from the ESFA, This is in relation to additional financial support
received by St Regis CE Academy (formerly The King's Church of England Seheol) on joining the Trust, The loan
will be repayable from September 2026 to August 2030. No interest will be charged on this balance.
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19. Statement of funds

Bolance ot 1
September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 31
2023 Income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) August 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
Designated
funds
5t Regis Urgent
Rectification
Works 800,000 - - (8C0,000) - -
General funds
General Funds 367,191 1,308,163 (911,680) (527,281) - 236,393
Total
Unrestricted
funds 1,167,191 1,308,163 (911,680} (1,327,281) - 236,393
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19. Statement of funds (continved)

Restricted
general funds

General Annual
Grant

Teachers Pay
Grant

Supplementary
Grants/MSAG

Pupil Premium

Pre-opening
grant

Other DfE Group
grants

SEN Funding

Other
Government
Granis

Qther income

Pension reserve

Batance at 1

September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 31
2023 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) Avugust 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £

197,582 20,940,651 (21,179,064) 40,831 - -

- 602,944 (602,944) - - -

- 629,684 (629,884) - - -

- 1,430,559 {1.430,559) - - -

9,090 . (9,090} - - -

- 748,845 (748,845) - - -

- 519,016 (519,016) - - .

- 567,330 (567,330) - - -

- 459,567 (459,567) - - -
(1,079,000} - {351,000) - 516,000 (914,000}
(872,328) 25,898,796  (26,497,299) 40,831 516,000 (514,000)
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19.  Statement of funds (continued)

Balance ot i
September Transfers Gains/ Balance at 3
2023 income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) August 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Transfer On
Conversion 114,461 71,732 {6,026) - - 180,167
Transfer from
Existing
Academy Trust 4,188,395 2,286,544 (220,509) - - 6,254, 430
DfE Group Capital
Grants 2,762,452 €3,416 (145,437) - - 2,680,431
LA Copital Grants 223,993 112,649 {11,793) - - 324,849
Capital
Expenditure
from
unrestricted 201,857 5,540 {10,627) 863,184 - 1,059,954
Capital
expenditure
from restricted 244,188 - (12,856) 423266 - 654,598
7,735,346 2,539,881 (407,248) 1,286,450 - 11,154,429
Totat Restricted
funds 6,863,018 28,438,677 (26,904,547 1,327,281 516,000 10,240,429
Total funds 8,030,209 29,746,840 (27,816,227 - 516,000 10,476,822

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
Unrestricted General Funds

This fund represents those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the
academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Unrestricted Designated Funds

This fund has been designoted towards the urgent rectification works project at $t Regis. This project involves a
combination of funding streams from a number of associated parties to compiete rectification works inherited
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19. Statement of funds (continued)
by the Trust when St Regis (formerly the Kings, Wolverhampton) joined the Trust in April 2023
Restricted General Funds

This fund represents grants received for the acodemy trust's operational activities and development.

Pension reserve

This fund represents the acaderny trust's share of the pension licbility arising on the LGPS pension fund.

Restricted Fixed Asset Fund

This fund relates to grant funding received by the ESFA to carry out works of a capital noture ond olso the
donation of leasehold land, buildings and playing fields from the locol authority on o 125 year lease and a smali
amount of capital expenditure from GAG and other sources of Income.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject 1o a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward ot 31 August 2024,

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year Is as follows:

Balonce at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
Designated
funds
St Regis Urgent
Rectification
works - - - 800,000 - 800,000
General funds
General Funds 352,373 1,302,745 (482,628) (805,299 - 367,191
Total
Unrestricted
funds 352,373 1302,745 (482,628) (5.299) - 1,167,191
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Bolonce at Balonce at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted
general funds
Genreral Annual
Grant 261376 14,667,776 (14,473,744} (257,826) - 197582
Supplementary
Grants/MSAG - 508539 (508,539 - - -
Pupil Premium - 819,507 (819,507} - - -
Pre-opening
grant 1G9 654 23,600 (194,164) - - 9090
Cther DIE Group
grants - 441008 {441,008) - - -
SEN Funding - 303,366 (303,365) - - -
Cther
Government
Gronts - 148379 (148,37%) - - -
Cther income - 256379 (256379) - - -
Pension reserve (1,566,000} - (744,000} - 1,251,000 (1.079.000)
{1194,970) 17,238,554 (17.909,086) {257,826 1,251,000 (872,328)
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Tronsfer On
Conversion 15,391 - (930) “ - 114,461
Transfer from
Existing
Academny Trust 47383330 - {194 935} - - 4,188,395
DFE Group Capital
Grants 36,714 2,740,445 14707 - - 2762452
LA Capital Grants 225814 - (1821 - - 223,993
Capital
Expenditure
from
unrestricted 215,896 - {19.338) 5,299 - 201,857
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19. Statement of funds {continued)

Balance at Baignce ot
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income  Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Capital
expenditure
from restricied - - (13,638} 257,826 - 244,188
4977145 2,740,445 (245,369} 263125 - 7,735,346
Total Restricted
funds 3,782,175 19,978,999 (18,154,455} 5,299 1,251,000 6,863,018
- 1,251,000 8,030,209

Total funds 4,134,548 21281744

Tota! funds analuysis by ccademy

(18,637.083)

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were aliocated as follows:

St Thomas' CE Primary Academy

St Peter's Collegiote Academy

The King's Church of Englond Acadermy, Kidsgrove
St Regis CE Academy

St Giles' & St George’s Church of England Academy
Hanley St Luke's C of E Aided Primary

Central services

Totol before fixed asset funds and pension reserve
Restricted fixed asset fund

Pension reserve

Total

2024 2023
£ £
(80,642) (3.518)
800,883 908,479
(371,512) {295,799)
{183,886) 289,861
478,584 -
39,614 -
(446,648) 474,840
236,393 1,373,863
11,154,429 7,735,346

(914,000} (1,079,000)

10,476,822 8,030,20%
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)

The foliowing academies are carrying a net deficit on their portion of the funds as follows:

Deficit

£

St Thomas' CE Primary Academy (80,642)
The King's Church of England Academy. Kidsgrove (371.512)
St Regis CE Academy {183,886)

Central services (446,648)

The academy trust is taking the following action to return the academies to surplus:

St Thomas' CE Primary Academy is carrying a net deficit of £80.642 on these funds. St Thomas is a single form
entry primary academy that has had o falling pupil roll over recent years. This is primarily due to the population
demographic in the locality resulting in less primary oged children within the catchment. There have also been
some significant personneg! changes ot the ccademy. The Trust has utilised the experience and knowledge of the
Principal of St Giles and St George's acadermy on an Executive Principal basis to redefine the schools offer and
distinctiveness. A new Heod of School joined the academy under the leadership of the Executive Principal in
January 2024, and further investment in staffing will see a new Deputy Head start in Jonuary 2025. A key focus
has been ensuring that the curriculum is fully fit for purpose and that children, parents, carers and staff are fully
engoged with the acedemy. Importantly the school has returned tc a medel of cone teacher per year group and
no longer has shared year group clusses. Marketing continues to be o key focus to increase the pupil roll. 1t s
expected that over time these cctions will begin to return the academy to surplus.

The King's Church of England Academy, Kidsgrove is carrying a net deficit of £371,512 on these funds. The King's
intends to grow its post-16 pupil roll significontly. The Trust has spent a significant amount of funds on building a
Learning & Resource Centre (LRC) and investing in T-Level Engineering at the ccademy. The new facllities are
tremendous. These developments as well as an increased focus on marketing and awareness of the
educational offer availoble, ore expected to return the academy to surplus over time. Pupil numbers have
Increased in 2024-25 and first choices in year 7 for 2025-26 are significantly higher than ever before.

St Regis is carrying a net deficit of £183,886 on these funds. St Regis is a significant turnaround project for Three
Spires. The school was fully expected to be incurring significant deficits for the first three years within Three
Spires Trust and appropriate arrongements were made in advance following discussions with the DFE. As such,
ESFA grrangements are in place for both recoverable and non-recoverable funding, the cccounting tregtment
of this funding is complex. St Regis hos seen draomatic and exciting changes cover the lost 18 months with a new
school name, branding, leadership, curriculum ond facilities; the launch of an inhouse Appropriate Provision,
Basketbali Academy, Cricket Academy and E-Gaming; os weil as the launch of the Three Spires Sixth Form
(TSSF) located at the Compton and Tettenhall campuses. These changes have seen interest in the school reach
unprecedented levels. The school is expected 10 return to surplus in 2026-27 in line with the recovery plan.
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Central Services is carrying a net deficit of £446648 on these funds. This includes the debit impact of £800k
worth of expenditure that tock ploce in 2023-24 relating 1o the urgent rectification work project of 5t Regis.
Three Spires strongly believes In o modet of Christian servant leadership. We strive to provide o service to ouf
academies that enable our young people to flourish and achieve [ife in all its fullness. Trustees look to build
copacity within the central teamn and within our academies prior to when it is reguired. This enables the trust to
be confident in knowing that it con deliver the projects and the growth that it is committing too, as it hos the
team and the infrostructure in place. As more schools join the trust, in line with our growth plan, and as revenue
grows from our newly launched Institute of Ecucation, the central services deficit will reduce and achieve a

surplus.
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19, Statement of funds (continued)

Total cost anatysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and

educational Other Other costs
support staff support staff Educational excluding Total Total
costs cosis supplies depreciation 2024 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
St Thomas' CE
Primary
Academy 934489 182,687 86,587 172,334 1,376,097 1,288444
St Peter's
Collegiote
Academy 6,533,969 1,033,511 &17,200 1,101,847 9,286,527 8,067,852
The King's Church
of England
Academy,
Kidsgrove 3934604 876,359 468,933 639558 5,919,454 5,279,429
St Regis CE
Academy 3,367,187 691,905 380,739 995,309 5,435,140 1,991,676
St Giles' & St
George's
Church of
England
Academy 1,196,735 166,083 159,878 242,742 1,765,438 -
Hanley St Luke's
C of £ Alded
Primary 1146862 183,655 97,608 203,760 1,631,885 -
Centrai services 714,889 467184 16,513 439852 1,638,438 1,000,313
1,827,458 3,795,402 27,052,979 17627714

Academy trust 17.828,735 3,601,384
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20.  Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current period

Tangible fixed cssets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year
Creditors due in more than one year

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Total

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period

Tengibie fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year
Creditors due in more than one year

Provisions for lighilities ond charges

Total

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2024 2024 2024 2024
£ £ £ £
- - 11,088,634 11,088,634
236,393 2,472550 65,795 2,774,738
- {2,055,318) - (2,055,318)
- (417,232) - (417,232)
- (914,000) - (914,000)
236,393 (914,000) 11,154,429 10,476,822
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
£ £ £ £
2,856 - 5,558,239 5,561,095
(2,855) - 2.856 -
1167191 2865019 2,174,251 6,206,461
- (2,332,288) - (2.332,288)
- (326,059) - (326,059)
- {1.079.000) - (1,079,000}
1,167,191 (872,328) 7,735 346 8,030,209
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2. Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net incaome for the period (as per Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and cther capita! income

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inharited

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pansion scheme finance cost

Increase in stocks

Increase in debtors

(Decreose)/increose in creditors

Loans transferred on conversion

Fixed assets transferred on conversion

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

22, Cash flows from financing activities

Cash inflows from DfE funding

Repayments of borrowing

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

2024 2023
£ £
1,930,613 7,644 661
407,248 245369
(176,065) (2,740,345)
562,000 718,000
(259,000) (27,000}
48,000 73,000
(4,000) {8,204}
(438,875) (403921}
{278,322) 1,149 463
19,555 -
{2.358,27%5) -
(547,121} 1,651,023
2024 2073
£ £
199,133 -
(87,273) (M.,287)
111,860 (1,287
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23,

24.

25.

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash used in investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hond and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash at bank and in hand
Debt due within 1 year
Debt due ofter 1 year

2024 2023
£ £
{3,615,372) (737,889)
2,788,323 128,055
(827,049) (609.834)
2024 2023
£ £
1,661,028 2,923,338
1,661,028 2,923,338
At
September Other non- At 31 August
2023 New loans Cash flows cash changes 2024
£ £ £ £
2,923,338 - - 1,661,028
{83,706) (3.124) (124,392} (123,948)
(326,059) (215,565) 124,392 (417,232)
2,513,573 (218,689) - 1,419,848

e ——————— M e
T —————— I —————
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26.

Transfer of existing ccademies into the gcademy trust

On 1 November 2023, oll of the operations, assets and liobifities of St Giles’ and 5t George's Academy, the the
sole school of St Gies' & St. George's Church of England Academy, transferred to Three Spires Trust for £nil

consideration.

The tronsfer has been occounted for as o combinagtion that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred at the reporting value of the transferring academy and recognised in the Balance sheet under the
oppropriate heading with @ corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of financial

gctivities as income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from an acaderny.

St Giles' & St George's Church of England Academy

Intangible assets

Tangible fixed assets
Long-term leasehold property
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Computer eguipment

Current assets

Debtors due within one year

Cash at bank and in hond
Liabilities
Creditors due within one year

Pensions

Pensions - pension scheme ossets

Pensions - pension scheme liabilities

Pension Asset not recognised

Net assets

Value
reported by
transferring  Transfer in
trust  recognised
£ £
1806410 1,806,410
408,975 408,975
32776 32,776
38,383 38,383
91,634 91,634
618,711 618,711
(253,829 (253,829
2,014,000 2,014,000
(1,680,000  (1,680,000)
(334,0003 (334,000)
2,743,060 2,743,060
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27.  Conversion te an academy trust

On 01 February 2024 Honley St Luke's C of E Aided Primary converted to academy trust status under the
Acadernies Act 2010 and al the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Three Spires Trust from
Stoke-on-Trent City Council for £NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for os G combination thot s in substonce o gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair volue and recognised in the Balance Sheet under the appropriate heading
with a corresponding net amount recognised as o net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities as Income
from Donations and Capitai Grants - transfer from local authority on conversion.

The foliowing table sets out the fair volues of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of
their recognition In the Statement of Financial Activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Totol
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets
Other tongible fixed assets “ - 71,732 7,732
Current assets
Cash - representing budget surplus on LA
funds 28,475 - - 38,475
Cash - representing budget surplus on
other school funds 3,875 - - 3,875
Current liabiiities
Barchester Loan - (19,555) - (19,555)
Non-current Habilities
LGFS pension (deficit) - (562,000) - (562,000)
Net assets/(liabilities) 42,550 {581,555) 71,732 (467,473)
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27.

28.

29.

Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

The above net assets include £42,350 that were transferred as cash.

The other tangible fixed assets were transferred to Three Spires Trust from Staffordshire County Council for £nil
consideration. The basis for this valuation is detailed in the accounting policies note 1

Loans totalling £19,555 have been transferred from Stoffordshire County Councll,
The LGPS pension deficit represents the deficit ot 1 February 2024 in respect of employees of the maintained

school and have transferred to the multi academy trust. The basis for this valuation is detailed in note 1 and note
29.

Capital commitments

2024 2023
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements
Acquisition of tangible fixed cssets 61,965 -

Pension commitments

The ccademy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
Englond and wales {TPS) for academic and reloted staff; and the Loca! Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by Staffordshire County Council ond West Midlands Pension Fund. Both
are multi-employer defined beneflt schemes.

The lgtest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the pertod ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31 March
2022

Contributions amounting to £467100 were poycbie 1o the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023 - £305164) and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributery, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is avtomatic for full-time teachers in gcademies. All
teachers have the option to opt-cut of the TPS following enrclment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, os a percentage
of salary - these contributions ore credited to the Exchequer. Retirement ond other pensicn benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Porliament.
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29,

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts @ formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The oim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
vaiuations ore dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016, The valuation report was
published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elerments of the valuation and subsequent

consuitation are:

o employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay {including a 0.08% administration levy). This is
an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result Is such that no change in member

benefits is needed.
« total scheme liabiities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service

to the effective date of £262.000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional investments held at the veluotion date) of £222,200 million, giving a notioncl past service deficit
of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 Aprit 2024, The next valuation result is due 1o be
implemented from 1 April 2028

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2,595,000 (2023 - £1,601,000).

A copy of the vaiuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www:eecherspensEons.co.uk/news/empiogers/20%9/04/feochers—pensions-valuction-report.ospx).

Under the definitions set out in £RS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy
Trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the Academy
Trust has tcken advantage of the exemption In FR5102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as
i# it were o definad contribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information avaiiable on the

scheme.
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the ossets held in separate trustee-cdministered
funds. The total contribution made for the ysar ended 31 August 2024 was £1,382,000 (2023 - £1,065,000), of
which empioyer's contributions totolled £1,108,000 (2023 - £733,000) cnd employees’ contributions totalled
£274,000 (2023 - £332,000). The agreed contribution rutes for future years are 27.2 per cent for employers and
85-12.5 per cent for employees.

Pariiament has agreed, at the request of the Secretory of State for Education, to a guarantee thot, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme fiabilities would be met by the Department for
£ducation. The guorantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Deportment for Education
reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with o parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.
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29.  Pension commitments (continued)
Principal actuarial assumptions

Staffordshire County Council

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of Increase for pensions In payment/inflation
Discount rate for scheme liabilities

Inflation assumption (CP)

Cormmutation of pensions to lump sums

2024

315
2.65
5.00
2.65

65

2023
%

345
295
520
295

65

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2024 2023
Years Years
Retiring today
Males 20.0 201
Females 238 239
Retiring in 20 years
Males raiv 218
Fermales 24.8 248
Wwest Midlands Pension Fund
2024 2023
% %
Rate of increase in salaries 3.65 4.00
Rate of increase for pensions in poyment/inflation 2.65 3.00
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.0 5.20
Inflotion assumption (CPD 2.65 3060
Commutation of pensions o lump sums 50 65

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowaence for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
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29, Pension commitments (continved)

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Fernales

Sensitivity analysis on obligation

Staffoerdshire County Council

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPlrote +0.1%

CPlrote ~0.1%

Salary rate +0.1%

Salary rate -0.1%

West Midlonds Pension Fund

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

Salary rate +0.1%

Salary rate -0.1%

2024 2023
Years Years
19.5 19.6
23.4 235
205 20.6
249 249
2024 2023
£000 £00C
97 (723
197 (723
282 100
(282) (100)
192 67
(192) (67
9 7
16 &)
2024 2023
£000 £000
140} (125)
140 125
274 246
(274) (246)
136 1ns
(136) {115)
7 13
M (5

A —eeeeeits
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29,

Pension commitments (continved)
Share of scheme assets

The academy trust's share of the assets In the scheme was:

Equities
Corporate bonds
Properiy

Cosh and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £2,131.000 (2023 - £292,000),

The omounts recognised in the Stotement of Financial Activities are as follows;

Current service cost
Interest income

Interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligotions were as follows:

At 1 September

Transferred in on academies joining the trust
Current service cost

interest cost

Employee contributions

Actuariol going

Benefits poid

At 31 August

At 31 August At 3T August
2024 2023
£ £
7,889,000 5,104,000
4,146,000 1,720,000
892,000 583,000
569,000 260,000
13,596,000 7,667,000
2024 2023
£ £
{849,000) (706,000)
564,000 292000
(612,000) (365.000)
{897,000} (779,000)
2024 2023
£ £
8,649,000 7.460,000
3,713,000 1,817,000
849,000 706,000
612,000 365,000
274,000 166,000
(39,000) (1,757,000}
(148,000) (108,000}
13,910,000 8,649,000
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29,

30,

Pension commitments {continved)

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2024 2023
£ £
At 1 September 7,921,000 6,038,000
Transferred in on academies joining the trust 3,151,000 1,099,000
Interest income 564,000 292,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) 726,000 (299,000)
Empioyer contributions 1,108,000 733,000
Employee contributions 274,000 166,000
Benefits poid {148,000} (108,000)
At 31 August 13,596,000 7,921,000

As detailed In note 2, ¢ surplus asset on the Staffordshire pension fund of £600,000 (2023- £351,000) has not
been recognised in the financiel statements and the mevernent in surplus of £245,000 (2023 - £351,000) has
also not been recognised during the year.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2024 the ccademy trust had commitments to make fuiure minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating lecses os follows:

2024 2023

£ £

Not later than 1 year 112,019 84,350

tater than 1year and not later than 5 years 267,839 70,019
94,637 -

t.ater than 5 years

474,495 154,369
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Three Spires Trust

(A Compony Limited by Guarontee)

Notes 1o the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2024

3.

32.

33,

34,

Other financial commitments

2024 2023

£ £
Within 1 yeor 101,975 -
101,975 -

Members' Hability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one yeor after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £1 for the debts ond liobiliies contracted before he/she ceoses to be o
member.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from focal
public and private sector orgonisations, fransactions may toke place with orgenisations in which the trustees
have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in occordance with the
requirements of the Academy Trust Hondbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after
1 April 2079 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and
normal procurement procedures reloting to connected and related party transactions.

Lichfield Dioceson Board of Education 8 a member of Three Spires Trust: The Acaodemy Trust purchased
educational services from the Lichfield Diocesan Board of Educction totolling £4,36% (2023 - £9,707) ond
inherited o new loon on conversion of £19,555, moking loon repayments {otalling £14,598 (2023 - £8274).
Amounts outstanding at the year end were £87,683 (2023 - £82,727) relating to the loan balance. The Academu
Trust made the purchase ot arms’ length in gccordance with its financicl reguictions. The service was not
competitively tendered due to the speciclist nature of the service provided. In entering inte the transaction the
Academy Trust hos complied with the reguirements of the Academy Trust Handbook.

Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFAL In the accounting year
ended 31 August 2024, the trust received £57,734 ond disbursed £26633 from the fund. An amount of £94,466 is
included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that is being carried forward for distribution in 2024/25.
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